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o constructed - if it were placed semewhere near the end ef -
2vnake Selitade, it could previde sterage capacity ef a little o
i more than five blllien gallens a day, in ather words, half
. ras much as the Spruce Run site is estimated te previde. Justf~f?f~
‘>hew far this weuld back up the water, 1 am not quite clear en
but up where the Gerge epens at the northeast end, there is aljar;
| place called Hoffmanis where there used te be a dam - you can:irl"

' Stlll see ‘the remains of a dam across the Seuth Branch ef the”f557¥=*

was to constract a subterranean tunnel from that peint over

ef what m1ght be done in the way ef develeping the Gerge as a

sterage basin fer water on the Seath Branch of the Raritan.

We were 1nfermed that depending upen where the dam isi"“ii.e

Raritan.

Now, one ef the ideas some years ago as a pessibility

eto Round Valley, whlch of course has been acquired by the;rfffﬂ:PAE;
State, with the exceptien, frem what we got on our teur, of f;ff,rri"'“
approxlmately five or six farms whlch wlll have to be candemned :
'by the Siate.v The\other~preperties have been purehased»and 1 ;e,37?1i*“
‘understand the state has given netice to the preperty ewners‘:

'when they Will ‘have to meve out. Some have already moved.:jl

New, if this tunnel as a pessibility were censtructede'

from Hoffman's over to Round Valley, the cest af censtructien,lf:h"l}'
iaccerding te informatlen we received frem Dr. Capen last

““Tuesday, woald be abeut seven million dellars, as 1 recall

fer the construetien of the tunnel and other things that

‘would be necessary¢ o

From that Site we. went over and teured through Round EERE
Valley, which of caurse is a very fine natural basin.fer Do






water supply. We were advised that the cost of constructing
a dam and two dikes at Round Valley, whether the source would
be the Delaware or the South Branch of the Raritan or some
other stream, would be about fifteen million dallérsq

Bear in mind that has mothing to do with the con-
struction of any tunnel either from Hoffman's or Hamden,

After leaving Round Valley we went over to Hamden, which
lies about two miles south of Clinton along the South Branch
of the Raritan, and which two years ago was alsa.suggested'as a
possibility for supplying water frem the South Branch to Round
Valley. _ |

There are two or three important differences, as I
undefstand it, and the engineers can correct me on'any of
this because, not being an engineer, I respect their opinions.,
At Hamden we would have to pump water; whereas, at Hoffmaﬁ“s
we get a gravity flow., From Hamden, water waﬁld be suppliéd
to Réuh&zvalley by means of a pipe line; whereas, from
‘Hoffmants the subterranean tunnel would be constructed. The
cost @flthe pipe line and‘pumping station at Hamden would
be, according to Dr. Capen, about five millien dollars., |

After leaving there, we went to Spruce Run and went
‘thr@ugh the area that would be represented by the proposed
reservoir at Spruce Runsvwhich is of course the first of thé
twe proposals made by the Citizens Watef'ResoqueslAdviswry
Committee, We looked over one or two of the properties in
the Spruce Run area and also considered the question of any
roads that ’migh?e: have to be relocated and also whether the
water would at any time inundate any portion @f State
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Highway Ne. 69 as it runs between High Bridge and Glen
Gardner. .

Now, that generally wasbthe route and the people who
were on the trip and the things that we have checked into,

Speaking only for.myselfg llfeel that you learn a
great deal from a field trip, and that doesn't mean that we
dontt learn a great deal from public h@aringég but it is some-
timés'very beneficial to go out on the'gr@und'andvlmok over
the areas that are involved,

We more or less tentatively decided that we would take
another trip, this time on the Delaware, to look at Walpack
Bend and Tock's Island and, in addition to the members of
the’Legislatufe and the Executive Branch of the State Govern-
ment which we wduld like to have present when we do this, we
would also want to be éccompaniad by the Army Engineers because
they of course are now engaged in a comprehensive study of the
Delaware River and all of its tributaries, under the leadership
of ColonelvAllen and Lieutenant C@l@ﬂél'teeo We would also.
like to have with us at that time, if possible, some members
of the Citizens Water Resources Advisdry Committee,

I believe that perhaps 1 can make one statement
with safetyg at least that everybody seems to concedes that
in time we must go to the Delaware River for 1@ng®range'water
supply as well as flood control and regulation of the river
downstream, Obviously, the sconer we get to this task the
sooner it can be a@complished and the sooner some kind of
on=river dam and reservoir on the Delaware can become a reality.

So we‘hope ﬁo schedule such a trip in the early part of August.
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: That may - seund a llttle late but 1 have to spend abeut ten days :

toward the end ef this menth en mil1tary duty, which will there- f;“

v fere make the arrangements perhaps delayed semewhat. But if we
can look over the area the early part ef Aﬂgust and at least
‘shew seme activity in regard to the Delaware, instead of what
Jhas been done teo much, I think, over the years, talking abeut
the develepment of the Delaware, maybe it won't de any harm o
and it might accemplish censiderable geodo~v o - | -
1 might say that all of these things I mentioned here
ﬁ are simply pessibilities that we are trying te explere.» We |
-.hepe that we can have the engineers ef the Citizens Cemmittee
- and the engineers whe accempanied us en this teur last Tuesday
_Yget together and see’ whether they ‘can agree on certain peints
- as to hew much land weuld be 1nundated if the level were at ‘a-
certain number of feet abeve sea 1eVe1, and se ferth. L
" I mentien these things - net to threw any reflectien ft 
f in any way on the Repert of the Citizens Cemmittee.‘ 1 ceuldn't

' pOSSlbly extend, en my own behalf at least, toe much praise to

the Citlzens Committee and the able leadership of Geerge Smith ,,fﬁ

.fer the splendld J@b which these people ‘have: dene veluntarily

- and the time and effort they have put. into this werk._ But-I

}"do think in trying te find a. selutien for water, which 1 hope y
- we can do this year and put a questien en the ballet for _,’
fNevember, that we eught to and itls our dnty and respensibility |
{to leek inte all the pessibilities that there are. There f‘
:are so many preblems invelved - the questien of the cest ef

: acquiring land the questien ef how many preperty ewners :

yeu are geing te dispossess, in centrast with perhaps state-.

"ewned land in certain instances ‘and the use ef it, the -
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_question of whether Round Valley is going to be used in the
near future instead efllying;idle'for perhaps seven erveight -
‘years, or even longer mayh% while the Delaware River is being
developed° the questi@n ef how much water can be supplied
'3frem any of these sources in relati@n to the needs of the

- State, and also how much that water is- geing te cost to
consumers, the preblems of lower riparian owners along any of
these streams and what damage, ifr any, it's geing to d@,tevthe B
areas where the streams rise and start - all of thesé-ﬁhiﬁgé'e
have to be censidered'aiehg.With’many other preblems; 1 |
believe thét@s our duty injthie expleratien'and investigatién,lr‘

to do all @f—these thiﬁgs and then Céme-in With a'repert,V

which I trust weuld be something that ‘would perhaps - get on the o

ballet and passed this year se that we can make some real
strides and real centribuﬂions’teward resqlving,-at‘least
for a while and I hope‘qﬁiteearwhile, the weter suﬁply eﬁd
water storage problem in New Jersey and alse get en with the
bi~state ‘development of the Delaware at the ‘same time.

1 believe that covers all I can say about it.

éeeater Crane, is there aﬁything you want te,eddret”"
‘_this point? | | | . . |

SENATOR ROBERT C. CRANE: Yes3f1 wwﬁIdNiike terayj“
‘one thing, Seﬁatornnﬁmpnt.n ﬂhfbrtﬁnatély;ll ceuld'not:be‘e”
on the trip with you due te the illness of my wife; and I ‘
regretted the fact that I wasntt with you on this very fine
trip. Frankly, as I view these field trips, I do feel that'i
they are worth while. 1 know thaﬁ‘we mustwmake seme researeh, »
because we sitting on this Cemnittee are net engineers and
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we are makingvthis'researeh fortcomparison in the Stéte so
that we can better judge the two bills that haw been intreduced
to see 1f they are the solution to New Jersey's water problem.
I feel, too, that the research is good so that we legislators
may have some basis for ever~éll, long-renge:pregramming -
something that has been lacklng,ll think for too many years._‘
I am not sure in my mind what is the leng-range answer -

the Delaware, the Round Valley, or the\Raritan development,
and at:what_stage they begin, except that I do feeIYthet‘threugh_
these hearings and through thisdresearch'we can evaluéte these
biils and‘plaee them in the proper perspective so that we canv
- offer service to ‘the people. .

’ The other point I wanted to make was that I felt that
‘a remark in the public press, after the third public hearing,
‘was most unfortunate. It quoted a highly-placed legislative
~leader as saying that these two bills on which wevare conducting
'this public hearing happenedmto,be'"dead ducks.® And you
have given‘me your word, éir, and of course I knew,itdto-be
true that you did not make that statement, However, I feel
that if we are to have prejudgment and a display of,minds ;d
valreedy made up, we are going to get nowhere in sézving New
Jersey!s water problem. I think that this is a problem'of'
‘such éravity we must all approach it with open minde and ‘1
feel that these hearings‘have been very well taken, and I’alee‘
feel that the field‘trips in tneir broper place are geing to
better prepare us to do the job that we care ealled'upon‘to*do;'"
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SENATQR‘DUMONTm i‘oertainly agree Withithat;'becausefffiﬁ=

we Can!t ‘have any preJudgment of this plan that has been

recommended by the Citizens Committee, or any modification of_f,u”f

1iit or any other substitute for it nor can we have any. preax»*~'"
Judgment on the bills themselves.f" | _ ’
I might say that Senator Lance has indicated that he pn”,n

‘-would be very happy to take anybody who didnt't come along

'last Tuesday on the same tour again._ He's available for that;‘“.’

‘purpose. So,»too, is. Dr. Widmer and 1 1maglne, Dr. Capen.“

-So for any of you who want to make this trip, the opportunityvfif

is there. All you have to do is ask for it.

‘ Well now, we will proceed to take testimony._.Wwaili:,“ S

| start Wlth Mr. Fred Van Deventer._' "

FRED VAN DE VENT E R-', Senator Dumont, RS

; Senator Crane,pand other members of the Committee-? NW name is;_'

Fred Van Deventer. I 1ive at the headwaters of one of the

branches of Stony Brook in Mercer County, although this branchﬂf-

is 1n no wise. connected with the proposed dam and reservoir onf}nf‘

that stream. , ‘ ; L
I speak today as the Republican candidate for Nkrcer E

County State Senator, and I may say that this statement has

~ been read and approved for content by lessrs. A. Jerome M°°T‘8

'Daniel O'Donnell, and Edward Meredith, Republican»candidates’
;vfor the Assembly from Mercer'County; ‘It also has the approvalx*‘
':of the Republican County Chairman, Joseph M. Pierson. h
The Republican candidates have opposed the ereotion ofii

a dam and reservoir on Stony Brook for a variety of reasons,;hfn

‘many of which already have been stated by the Stony Brook-“75’h':°t

| Millstone Watersheds Assocéation, by the Citizens Committee






for a Sdund Water Plan; and by individuals who have spoken at
this hearing.

At the very outset of this statement, I should like to
say that I_am'not aﬁ engineer, that I cannot substantiate
technically any of the ideas herein contained. Rather, like
Senator Crane, I am a néwspaperman,_ As a newspaperman for a
period of time, perhaps, Senator, evén greater than yours
because I think maybe I am a little olderg i have been accustomed
'to reportihg on faété and suggesting ideés which might bring
about reforms and even a better Way of accomplishing a given
purpose., And that?s my reason for being here today.

Merdéerouniyvandvits citizensg_like all good.citizéns
of the State of New Jersey, are sympathetic to the plight of
- those who live in such crowded areas that there is a shortage
of pctablé!Water;' if itvcould‘be pfoved_that Mercer County
contained a'suppiy af’potabievwater not needed in this immediate
area, a supply thatvw@uld ngt create hérdship’of any kind for
this particular area, then itbéeams reasonable to assume that
the people of Mercer County would be glad to share this supply
with those who are in_needa'”

I have been attending these hearings with considerable
interest, but beyond the bare statement that water is needed
I have neither heard nor seen any adequate proof that the
tremendous shoftagé exists as haS been stated, Further; even
some of the propeents of the plah to erect a dam on étony
Brook have admitted that'perhapsvevén more extensive surveys
of the area shoulid be made before it can be positively stated
that a sﬁppiyvof water sufficient to be of benefit to the
‘northeastern counties is aVailable»along Stony Brooks
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Since’absoiuté proof Qf_need and‘abSOIute proof of
the évailability of water on Stony Brook has not = to this
moment = been forthcoming; it seemSiunreaéonable that the
people of Mercer County shéuidvbe_subjected»to‘the‘ioss of
ratables and thereby’incféased'taxeﬁg or that our verdant
“countryside shouid'ﬁe;subjecteq to the favages‘of mud flats
for the benefit of industrial éhterpfisé;in one or more other
counties, | | |

We realize that‘this‘is an indﬁétrial‘étateo In fact,
Mercer County is constantly seeking neW'industries to augment

its own populatwn° But againg the plight of peoples- the

’.<plight of homeowners who have erected their bulldings With 1oving

- careg should never be made secendary to fhe crass commercialism

_and ratable consciousnews ef poiltlﬁal ‘areas, 0n ‘this basis,

'Weﬁﬂthe Republican candldates for the Legislature from Mercer
‘.Countyy must recommend to our voters that ney disapprove the
-"bond issue as praposed in Semata Bills 27/ and 273 if they
should be offered at a pubilc referendame

On the other hand ‘the people of Mercer County are not
insen31ble to the_needs-and desires of @thersg and to that
end we Wish‘ta sﬁbﬁit td tﬁisvCommittee‘avpro§0Qal'@f ah idea
whereby the potable Water necebsary for the @ont*nued ¢xistence
and well-being of norcheastern caunties of New Jefqu may be
obtained, Therg mayveven be a means of increasing the stream
flow'of thé Raritan RiVefa aithothvthis should be secondary
to the provision for potable water, As a matter of fact, it
"may well be that cleaning up the unsightly and unhealthy stream
pollution of the Raritan belévaound Bréok should be required
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before any additional ‘flow of the river should be maintalned
by the State.frcm any are_ae That there is now in the area"
‘below Bouﬁd Brook,iﬁddstfiai stream‘poliutxong there can be
‘;no doubto- | i | v_}‘. | L " ‘
1 w1sh to state in submlttlng thlS idea that it has not
>been surveyed and checked by engineers, but then the recommenw if
datlon of the Conservation Departmentﬂs Advxsory Commlttee forv'
a dam’ and reservoxr on Stony Brook has had no greater inspectlon
| by the engineering f;rm employed by the Cemmlttee than has been |
» given to this ideao {: | | el | |
{ . .f Further, I should llke to give 1t as the opinlon of the
| 'Republican legislative candldates fr@m Mercer County that we
__be11eve the only 1ongmterm soiu ?ien +o ihe watef problem of
>n0rthern New Jersey 1168 1n water from the Deiaware szere Ouf
idea admlttedly is a stop gap te prevxée petable waeer for
northeastern New Jersey untll the waters of the Delaware can -
':be adequately tapped for use,v And we think the plan 1 shall
jpropose is cheaper by far than any of Which we have hedrd $0
’_faro 1 should llke to remlnd the Cemmlttee that under the
%:last mandate from the Supreme Ceurt the S*ate of New Jefsey-
' Ezs permltted to take a dally averqge of 100 mlliien gallons
~of Water from. the Delaware fmr use in some ether river basnnz
thhout provxdlng for Lompensatlng flawso The State may take
as high as 120 millicn gallons in dny one da,yﬁ7 so long as the o
dally average over a onewmenth pBPLOd does nct exceed the
100 mllllon dally average° “ . | |
1 have obtained from Sally A;keng Asszstant te the'-
eSecretary cf the DiV131on of Water Pollcy and Supply9 some







statistics on the use that:has beenbmade of this 100 million
gallon daily diversion. I also have ébtained from Mr. Howard
Acken, Superintendent of ﬁhe Delaware and Raritan Canal, which
transports the water from thé Delaware‘to the Raritan;
additional statistics which‘i Shouldllike to call to the
attention of this Cbmmitteeob;.. e | : -

I quote from the Alken letter  v”Thé canai'is @resently
transportlng about )b to 60 milllon gallons a daya oﬁr |
‘bcurrent sales of water average between 20 and 25 miilion
- gallons daily. The highest month of FGCOFd was July 19559
during which we sold 758 1/2 million gallon,s° The hlghest
month in 1956 was 0ct@ber, when 578 1/2 milliom galions ‘we re
sold,™

| Unfoftuna£é1y9 thevAiken'1e£tér'dees n§t disclose'thé
largesi amount 5leatér‘§Old in‘aﬁyvone”déy;f'Howeveﬂ*'it is

,noteworthy that current contracts now cail for a dally ma x imum

7.of sl;ghtly more. than 40 mlllion gallons, _This,dees not mean
that thls-much water’ls used . It means oniy that under present

condltions ‘that much may be takeno I frankly do qot know

o whether that much water ever has been taken in any one daye

The maximum that may be taken in any one month under current
contracts‘ls 1,107 miillon gdllonsg wh;chbls nearly»BSO milliion
gallons more than waé'taken at'ihe pééﬁ load of the'drought
year of 1955. “

In addition to the uoimiliionvgalions under current’
daily contractﬁ.theiDivision of Water Paolicy and Supply also
has pending ap?licatiohs’for‘aﬁ a@ditionéi L9 million gallons
daily., The appliéants'andfthé émoqnts tﬁey are réquesting
are 20 million galions'from the’Elizabethtown Water Company,
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14,5 million galloﬁs from the City of New Brunswick, 1 million
gallons from the Bakalite Cbrporation, and 13.5 million |
gallons from the Clty of North Brunswick.

Now, the State of New Jersey, through its Division of
Water Policy and Supply, has established the followzng monthlyv
rates for the sale of Deiaware‘watervas taken from the Canal:
For the firstFZS millioﬁagallons Gr'iéssg $30v¥,thatva per
million gallons; for the next bO million gallonsg ¢22 503 and
ffor all over 75 mllllon gallonsp $15 OO,‘ However9 certain
:minlmum rates are demanded for the standby service, The rules
-provide that durlng the first flve years fOllOWlng date of
appPOVal of the water use agreement the user shall paj to the
diV1810n a minlmum monthly chafge amounting to 50 per cent of
the value of the rates as’ I have Just set forth |

.+ For exam.ple9 thegBakelztevCompany has requested'an'

addip;onal oné'million:gallona dailyg, Thia-amounfs to 30
million gallons a month, The=cost’for the first 25 million
-galions at $30 a miilian_gaiiohs'i§;$7500 The'cost for the
next 5 million galloas woul d bé-$87 50, or a total of'$825 50,
of which half would be- payabla if none of the water was taken.
This 1 would Judge is a cemparatlvely small price for a LarJe
corporatlon to pay for a- guaranteed supply of waterg when
that commodity is so valuable in its manufacturing process,

Iq the case of the 3117abethtown Water Companyg using
the same process of flgurlngg Lts standby price would be
about $4,000 a month, and abputw$89600 a month if the total
supply was usedﬁl Agaihs this is a fairly small price to pay
forfguaranteed_service_td'oaé of the two largest private
utiiities in the Staié;?a | |
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Measurement of the iOO millioh,galions a day from the
Delaware is made at the lock at‘Kiﬁgstong since all water
used from the Delawaré, prior to iig arfival at Kingston, is
technically in the Delaware Valley andvisg therefore, not
chargeable to the total allowable under the Supreme Court -
N mahdateof; %,ﬁ  o : o
- As you know, £hié watéf»ié taken‘from the Delawére
~above Lambertviliefét.a point éalled’Réven Rock., It is trans=
ported thfough_Trentqng'tQ Kingst0n; Boﬁhd Berk“and New Bruns-
,wick*by means of the Delaware*aﬁd Raritan,Canalg'afwholiyé
owned state proaertya_  | | -vv

As I mentloned prevzousiygbthe management cf the Canal
and the sale of water from lt are under the supervmsion of the
DiV1slon of'Water>Poiioyvand Supply_zn thu Department of»Con=
>serba£ion énd Economic bév¢1épment3 a department Qf the State
.‘Govérﬁment,'Which'alsc ié;spbnsoring the.émiih COmmitteev
Reporta o |

The Department receiV@d the Canal as a gift from the
»ownersg and when the lOO mllllon gallons a day was. peﬂmlnted
:under-the Supreme Court manda*eS, the Canal seemedvto be the
‘best means Of transportlng the watef from the Delaware to the
’.Raritan Ba81n.ﬂ  " | | | |

Unfortunatelys‘hOWever, ihe Canal was conétructed as .
a means of trancportation for boats and not for water, Its
condltlon was such that back in the adminlbtratian of
'Governor'Harry Moore, he suggested that the Canal be fitted:

as a concrete conduit to prevent leakage. However, then and
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now, this appears on the basis of available information‘to be
 unecoﬁoﬁica1°>’The Canal at present does have a clay.base
~except for those spaces Which have been»concreted° The clay
bése, én the basis of engineering reports, is the best for the
money, but there‘are leaks,v.The eXtent'of these leaks has
never been accurately de%eﬂnined but on the basis of informa-
A tion glven to meg 1t»W@uld appeaf that water fed 1nto the
Canal\by streams_along,itstath is sufficient to refill the
Canal with_wﬁatévef ioss odcurs between Kingsﬁon and Bound Brook.
Now for a bit of arithmetic. Al the precent time, some
;iiSB to 60 mlllion gallons a day is being transported from
Klngston toward Bound Br@ek Some 25 million gaLlons a day is
belng seld, which means that some 30 fo 35 mllllon gallons a
:day 1s}be;nguﬂumped>;ntclthe Ra;iman at the point where the
Canal ends. o “ |
Mro Howard Acken tellb me that he once experlmen%ed to
determlne Just what the maximum capa,c1 y of the Canal mlght be,
He is not certa;n even now, but over a peﬂzod of time he dzd |
 take 90 mllllon gallons a day from the Delaware without material
damage to the Canal, Hewls-aot,aertain but he feels that w1th-
| _séme repairs-theucanal'ﬁightvbe ab1e to take the whole 100
million:galiﬁns a‘déy,’ But.forvthe sake_af this discussion,
lei us aséume that with proper repairs only 90 miliion gallons
daily can be taken and transported beyond the loch@ at Klngston°
Remember please tha? the preseni daily average take is iny
25 million gallons beyond Kingston and that the largest single
user is the Elizabethtown Water Company, which cn Monday,
July 1, took'Oniy approximatély 8_miliioﬂ gallons,
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This leaves, according to my arithmetic, 65 million gallons
a day which might be used for the benefit of the northeastern
counties.

I am well aware, as I mentioned previously, that 49
miilion galions more has'beén>requésted, But in this regard
may I once_again point out ihat this Water is n0t_noW being__v
used;:'Yéu‘may Say thétvther@ will comé a day when it will be
~needed, and with that I am in sympathy. ‘Sut it is not being
used now. | |

.Ybﬁ mayvéay,that the Canal must be prepared to deliver
fthe maximum of it$ contracts at’any given time, and with that
I am in Sympatﬁya_‘Bﬁt_l believe a solution to that is possible,
even thbugh it will take engineering_studies'tovproven This
‘_Could'be aécompliéhed'byvthe erection of a series of sﬁall
dams ohvthe Millstonézjust before it§ confiuence with the
| Rafitan, and.on’the‘Raritan‘itselfo |

1 haQe takeﬁ aftfip threﬁgh thé valiey of the Millstone
vand the‘Réritan‘Rive;§3 anéther field trip, gentlemen, and
While.l amvnot an engineer, there appear to be pei@ts along
the’River whére»these'éma11 dams might e constructed entir@ly;
, Of mbstly, within the banks of those rivers, In féct9 ih
testimony given before a previous\iegisiativ& hearing cn the
proposal tb'buy and fill the Chimney Rock project, Mr. Robert
Kean, President of.thebElizabethtown Water Company, and
Mr. Girand, the Chief Engineer, both stated that their
companvaas prepared at its own prensé to build a series
of small dams along thevRaritan‘and its tributaries which
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would provide all of the water the Raritan Valley will need until
'sthe year 2000 or until the Delaware can be developed '

Lo | The Elizabethtown officials dld not locate the dams they
.had in mind but suffice it to say9 they thought then that they v
could build the necessany reservoirs for a total cost of something
”flike three million dollars.: Thus, surely, Stony Brook would not
“vbe one of them.jvé :fi“J,,i?fﬂf'f:fn;;]_;:}df.~-7;i3 ;_“'?;dif~,zcl
- Now, my proposal 1s that, if necessary, the surplus o

:waters of the Delaware and Raritan Canal be used to supplement %ii
'j“water 1n these dams if necessary°~ There are any number of pointsiﬁ
Vbetween Kingston and Bound Brbok where breaks in the Canal could
1be made to increase the flow of the r1vera_ I assumeg of course,:‘i"
”Vthat some satisfactory system for measuning and charging for the

'water that is moved into the Raritan could be worked outo N
/_Certainly w1th 1ncreased flows as a nesalt of the nine dams as
'3'proposed by the Stonylellstone Watersheds Association and w1th
increased flows from the Canal there should be a sufficient
fsupply of water for the Somerset Middlesexg'and Union County
areas and‘ according to testimony two years ago by Mr, Kean and
fi Mr. Girand these are the only counties which now. need an 1ncreased
Aiisupply of water, both potable and for the maintenance of stream -

flowo?:lbj,,;v.,.,gtv, _ o i ; , . :
jv Mr. Acken and Mr, Connard of the Delaware and Raritan
) ,Canal made the tFlp with me 1nto the valleys of the Millstone
and the Raritan on’ Mondayg,Juiy l,_ They did not say that this -
:plan is engxneeringly sound but they did say that there is® ‘
sufficient merit to it that 1t is worthy of 1nvestigation° xit S
"apparently has been investigated as thoroughly as has the Stony

» Brook project by the Advisory Pommitteeot_







Certalnly this plan, if it 1s englneerlnglyvand -
economically sound would have the merit that 1t will cause no
,polltlcal hassels among different areas of the State.y The
| State already owns the Canal. The Stony Brook-millstone Water-
sheds Association has already stated it is prepared to go ahead
S'wlth its small dams. The Ellzabethtown Water Company two years

- ago pleaded for perm1531on to go ahead without pOlltiCal dis--

':ruptions. The combinatlon of all three would appear to me and to

'the Assembly cand1dates of the Republlcan Party for hercer County |

to offer at least a temporary solution without taking away

valuable ratables from Mercer County and wzthout destroying the

homes of citlzens of this county,:to Which thelr owners have.

- devoted much of the1r 11ves.;f ‘v "‘” | | h

| SENATOR CRANE°' I'll admlt to one thing, Fred.‘-youyare';'

lder than 1 am, I belleve.r»l‘”' ’ | -
] You referred 1n here many tlmes, Mr. Van Deventer, to

"che fact that your plan had evidently as much research as’ the

:Smith Committee proposal.; I mean, do’you actually belleve that?s_ _

”,»true? : o . R I L .
SRR NIR VAN DEVENTER~' Well call 1 know is what the
: englneer sald that he had drlven through the Stony Brook o
z'Valley and I have drlven through the Mlllstone and Raritan
:'Valley, and I admit that l am not an englneer. | o
o SENATOR CRANE “Well, do you believe that that's all
'that engineer did? Had;you_read his report, the Smlth;Qommlttee
”Reporu o i R
IR, VAN DEVENTER' YGS,‘ sir. S
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SENATOR CRANEe}'Did yod‘read the TAMS:RQPQFt?

‘MR, VAN DEVENTER°_ I dld. |

SENATOR CRANE° Doth you believe that more engineering
work has been donepother tnanvgust e field}trip? _

MR, VAN DEVENTER: Wellb'lvthink:youﬂre being trivial
about it. I meang for the sake of dlscu351on we will concede
that that is true but then that mlght be open to dlscussion.b

SENATOR CRANE° Well, I am not trylng to be tr1V1al,
Mr. Van Deventer, but yoﬁ d1d refer several times to the .
engineering work done'and 1n that it appeared from your remarks
that the same could be done by a layman and not a. speoiallst
service, it seemed to more or less impugn the manﬂs o :v

MR, VAN DEVENTER*p Vell, you understand 1 had ur. Acken
and Mr. Connard with me, tooo 'A p' ‘_g'g» _‘_v | o

SENATOR CRANE’ Yes, lbreailze that bﬁt'i‘wanted io |
draw a comparleon. | | iv o “.,v L

' The other thlng ls,.sir, were you here present when
the Water Pollcy Coun011 gave 1ts report through George Shanklin?

MR, VAN DE VENTERe‘ 1 was.;.ev T |

‘ SENATOR CRANE Apd through others it was developed
that not all of the 100 milllon gallons per day cou?d be
delivered through the Delaware Cana1° in other wordsp that thej
could not use up to lOO tnat they would have to stop somewhere
short of 100 million gallons, | | ‘

MR, VAN DEVENTER: Well, I stopped short of it, too,
with 90 million’gallohs;fo_: | o |

SENATOR CRANEgg}1n11_citg.now‘Leggettey_érasheaps 8
Graham as those who havewcoﬁductedvthe'ngund water surveys for
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both TAMS and the Smith‘Committeé; and I_thodght they gave rather
an exhaustive outline of thé.ianalance Qf the Statets water supply.
Are you familiar with thatf o v |

MR, VAN DEVENTER: = No, I'm not.

| SENATOR CRANE: They developed how 1t was possible that
one portion of the State might have a critical-shortage wh;le the
other mgght not. . . . | |
rm— | MR, VAN DEVENTER: . I:beliévé‘tﬂat‘is élso the statément
of Robert Kean and Mr. Girénd two yéars ago. They said essentially
the same thing. ) | P

SENATOR CRANE° Well, in the Leggette Report it is
ﬁoint d out that 1tﬂs not possible to take the same amount of
water from each acre<throughout‘the Stae that‘in some acres
they take ‘more and drive our 1eve1¢ down to salt water intrusion,
and in the other parts of the State there might be more water
than necessary;thereforeB it becomes a mdtter of transportatlon
to get it to the areas. that neOd it the most° 'NOW§ sir, would
you describe your area-as one thatviS‘bLessed with an abundance
of water 2 _ | _ \
R, VAN' DEVENTERe e think that all you would have to
d6 would be to ge out to Stony Brook today and see how ]ittle
water there is there. L v

SENATOR CRANE: ‘_‘Wellg‘th'en,"y‘ou too are interested in
~a water program,; sir?

MR. VAN DEVENTER: Definitel‘y° It'm trying to suggest
something here which, to my knowledges has not been suggested,
fecently anyway = certa1n1y not to my knowledge., I am trying
to suggest something differentglwhereby yvou can get the water
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you need without teaping.uéiMercef Cdunty; -vThatfs'What it
amounts to. B ' | | i ’ |
SENATORiCRANE:ngellg'de_yeu'ﬁeen,fearing‘up;_or
inundating? ,H , ..Hi:}btf 1 o _ | |
VR, VAN DEVENTER: | Well, "tak'e it :'ei’r;her*Way you like. |
SENATOR CRANE° Do you believe that this would be a stop~
gap measure that Would take care of all @ur needs untll the Delaware
is developed? _ » H‘ o  }‘” | » . |
MRO‘VAN DEVBNTER§  Yes;131r., If*yeeftekeﬁinto consider=
ation that eomewhere-ﬁp afound oO-mrlIion”Qeilbns.a}dey'is available
every day in the Canal, approx1mate1y that - call it SO, call 1t
.;anything you-like., NOstlf the Elizabethtown Water Company would

"-,go ahead and bulld the dams which two years ago they sald they

were=readj to bulld and 1f the flow of the Raritan and the

Nlrlstone and 1ts varlous tributaries would not fill those dams,‘“
:then every day w1thout exception you could dump SO to 60 million

gallons of water from the Canal 1nto the Rarltan behind those

B dams °

N@We you'uﬁder3€éndfiﬁeﬁ‘not'eﬁ"engineer but’i am told
that this lS sufflciently fea31ble that itﬁs worthy of investi=
gation, by competent englneers,; As ycu say9 IVm-no englneer°

SENATOR CRANE° This plan that you 01ted that the
Ellzabethtown Water Company had proposed =-I believe that they
have stated through thelr enJlneers that they at one time
investigated fifteen smaller dam sztesg and if 1 recall their
testimony I believe they stated,that they felt it was unwise to
proceed'with that plan Whiie'ﬁhis'waseahdef investigation;'and
I believe that the'samefthiﬁtholde:trde'of'tﬁe‘emaller'dam.
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program of the Stony BrookmMillstone, wifhout‘stating that fhose
~plans are not the correct oneso_ |
o MR, VAN DEVENTER: l have the Chimney Rock testimony
here if yoﬁ would 1ike‘tgjgo into it, as'to what‘Mro Kean and
Mr. Gifand said, ' If they‘have'téstified aﬁt@.ﬂl:‘.i;;i‘.s\heaxr*il:tnz@_9 I have
not heard them, but l.dd-havé tﬁaif ﬁestimcnyvof}ﬁwo yééré'agoo
SENATOR CRANEs“Weli,teithérQMr;'éiﬁand of’mr,-xean;
brought that out.
MR. VAN DEVENTER: I didn't happen to be here at the
moment when they testlfied ‘ L |  _ ’
| SENATOR CRANE; I belleve thatﬂs all I have rlght now,
. FSENATOR DUMONT° Dld‘MPo Acken g1ve'you any»ided»cf
the cost that would be required to repair the Delaware and
Raritan Canalg Mr,-Van Deventer? | B N | v
MR VAN DEVEN“P : He said that that would require very
% seriéus 1nvestlgation9 and I hesitate Lo quote him on what he
said because I don't WlSh to hold hlm to 1t9 but he estimated it
would be somewhere around a mlillcn dollarso» And that was purely
a guess, He said he didnﬁt knowo Apparently the blgg@st single
repairs can be traced to musk at39 1 understand
N NATOR DUMONT° And hi% statement is that today the
 Cana1 is only taking on an average dbOUL three=f1*ths at the
?moqt of the water ‘that NeW‘Jersey can take w1thout returning any
of 1t to ‘the River by Compensattng releases, 1 believe that was
55 to 60 mllllon,gallonsoi'”' | | |
. MR. VAN DEVENTER: i béiieve that was the Alken letter
and I have the letter befeo I ﬁéve fhat complete if you would

like to hear it all; I will be glad to read it to you,






SENATOR DUMONT: How long is it?
MR. VAN DEVENTER: Very short.
SENATOR DUMONT: Suppose you read it then, please.

MR, VAN DEVENTER: It is addressed to me and is dated
June 2).].5. 19570

"The following is the information concerning
the Delaware and Rarltan Canal which you requested
on Fridays . :

"The Canal presently is transporting between
55 to 60 million gallons a day., We could transport
80 millien gallons a day if we had sufficient
personnel to operate the control structures,
We are hard pressed at present to spread the
Canal operating force to cover a seven=day week,
The Canal Supervisor advises that we could take
the full 100 million gallons now allowed from
the Delaware River if a conduit were built the
full length of the feeder and the canal. '

“Our current sales of water average between
20 and 25 million gallons a day., The highest month
of record was July 1955, during which we sold
758,472 milliion gallons. The highest month in 1956
- was October when 578, 683 million gallons were sold,
Current contracts call for a maximum of 40.156
million gallons daily and a monthly maximum of
1106.90 miillion gallons, Some of the contracts
are on a 22 or 25=day basxsg while some are on a
30-day basis,

"Pending applications areg Elizabethtown
for an additional 20 million gallons; New Brunswick
an additional 14.5 millicen gallons a day; Bakelite
for an additional 1 million gallons, and a new
supply for NOFEh Brunbwzrk of 13,5 million gallons
daily.® :
That is signed by Sally C. Aiken, Aﬁsistant to the Secretary.,
SENATOR DUMONT Does dnyene havevany questions they
desire to ask of Mr. Van Deventer? Mr, Crocks?
MALCOLM CROOKS: I would 1like to ask Mr. Van Deventer,
did Mr. Acken give any indication whe ther or not repairs will be

‘needed to the Delaware and Raritan Canal even if the water
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capacity is not increased?

MR, VAN DEVENTER: The canal is under censtant repair,
They maintain regular maintenance men for‘the'entire length of
the canal and you understand I ‘toured it only from Kingston to
Bound Brook. I was told it was unnecessary to go beyond Bound
Brook because I wouldn't see anything_worth whlle° Frem Klngston‘
to Bound Bfook'theyﬁare'cenStantly'fepairing'if; They have just
cleaned off the tOWpath, for exampie. You understand the Delaware
and Raritan Canal was a;se:tokbevused and is being used for
fecreation as-well as tne’transport of raw water‘and,gfon that
reason, it is necessary to keep 1t in repalro They’freQuently
find al@ng the top where muskrats have dug 1n,'and then when the
’ water level is raised in tbe Canal thas will create = 1 donﬂt
knoyiwhat you call Lt = slulcesg-Ibsuppose,‘whlch.then have to‘be
repacked with clay. And thiS”is'being ddne;dn a;eanStant basis,
and presumably that costs mqneyvover a periqd of a’year,-‘l dontt
know how much., - | ; “_. : o |

SENATOR DUMONT: vAﬁyf:hingelse? .

' Mro Van heventerg 1t is my recollectlon that in the
leglslatlon that 1 sponsored in the fall of 19¢59 after the
disastrous flood of August 19559 there was an approprlatlon of
$250,000 made in the blllj which approprlated about six mllllon
‘dollars in all for flood relief, for the purpose of rehablilating
‘the Delaware and Raritan Canal. Do you know‘whether any of that
money has been exnended by the Department of Conservation and
Econemic Development?' |

MR, VAN DEVENTER: No, sir, I don't.,
SENATOR DUMONT: Any other questions? Thank you very

much’ 2l






MR, VAN DEVENTER: Thank you very much for your time,

SENATOR DUMONT: Dr. W. Taylor Thom, Jr. Is he

going to make his own statement, or are you going'to»make it,

Mr. Test, for him?

Mro Test Will make the statement-}or Dr. Thom,

ALFRED | L. T ES T:  Dr. W Taylor Thom is an
Emeritus Professor at Prlnceton Unlver31ty and had- hoped to be‘,
present., Unfortunately. he is in Arkansas and Texas doing con-
sultinngerk for the Federal Govefnment>and the,lecal étates on
water problems. _ o ‘ |

‘ Dr. Thom graduated w1th a degree of B S in Engineering

from Washington and Lee. University in 1913 He received his Ph, D°
,in Geoiogy from Johns Hopklns in 19170; Between 1912 and 1925g
| he served as Geologic Aide9 A531stant Geologist AseOCLate
Geologist, and Geoioglst in th Uo S, ueolqyical Surveyo He
became‘Geelogist=iﬁmcharge ofvthe Surveyﬂs*eoai section in 1923,
F;om 19259 until joinihg»Pfinceton Univefsityﬁs faculty in
Septembef 1927; he was Geologistwin¥eharge of theﬁeii'and gas
work,for the U, S. Geological'éﬁrvevQ TAfter joining Pfinceton'
Universityts staff he served as a member of the faculty for
the Geology and Geologlcal Eﬂglneerxng Department and in 19@0
became Chairman of the Princeton Universityﬂs Department of
Geeiogical Engineering, centinuiﬁg in that post until retirement
from the University in June 1956. |

During 194}y and 1945, as Chairman of the Department
of Geological'Engineefiﬂgéahe conducted é study of the water
supplies then availabie‘inlﬁew Jersey areas contigucus to the
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Pennsylvania Railroad lines, Enis étudy being~QXecuted under co-
operative agreement betweenthé Railf@ad and the University.

He has served as'Chairman3of VériOus committees of the
American Assoéiation'ef‘Pétfoléum Gédlogisté,‘American Institute
of Mining, Metallurgical and Petreléum'Ehgineeré, National Research
Council of Geology, and the Amerlcan Geophy31cal U’nlon°

~ This letter is addressed to me»,, R

Though I should 11ke to accept your invitatlon to
‘testify at the next publlc hearing on NeW'Jerseyﬂs Water problem,
1 shall be unable t@ do so bebause of prof6381onal commltmentb
which call me to Shrevepert Louisiana, However, 1 am sending yéﬁ
this brief memorandum in order to put forward a. few Suggestions
whlch may contribu%é to a. preper solutzon, In this cennectlon
two facts shouldﬁbe mentloned Wthh provmde backgroqnd as to my
~competence to offer useful nggesilanso o

First as I Peparted to you earller9 as Chairman of the
_Princeton Department of Geolegica* E‘ngmeemng57 I carried forward,
on behalf of the Unlversxtyg_ study of the Watew Supp118Q then
potentlally avallable along the Eines of the Pennsylvanla Railroad
in New Jersey = this wwrk being done unde“ a co=operat1ve agree-
ment between the Railroad and %he Unlversityo |

Secondlvg before.l came.to-Princeteng_I’had been
serving as Geologist- lnmCharge Of the Us S Ge@l@gi cal SUPch“S
0il and Gas Section - and in that connect;on9 and in connection
with subsequent National Research Céuncil and scientific society
activities, I followed withvintereSt the téchniquesvbeing used
for injectionAof water into undérgr@und reservoirs:
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First, in conneétion with the incréaée of Qillpf0~>‘
duction by the so-called "wateréflood" process of watef injection;
Second, in éonnéétion with re=introduction into under-
grouﬁd reservoirs;
a,. Of great quantities Qf'oil field brines;, as in
East Texas, or v | |
b, Of fresh waters Wthh had been used for air gon-
ditioning and comparable purposes;"
}Third, the'phen@menaliy successful Seabr@ek Farms me thod
for returning waste. waters to the subsurface by a m@difled form
of induced artesian recharge or “Water spreadingo" |

The Basic Water Problem in New Jerseyo_‘

| The baslc Water problem 1n New Jersey, at prasen and
in the predlcfable fature, involves in méJQP degree the develc:’p«=

ment of an 1magznative plan for the underground storage of the

fl@od water intermittentiy ppovided bj snow=me1t and by storm
run=off. It is my confldent beliex that the underground reservoirs
available to us not only have a Capaui Ly gfeatly exceeding that
" of any possible system of 1arga surface reservo;rss but that
this underground water stdrage‘éan:be deVeléped far mere cheaply,
and has the added advahtaqe“of yielding rélétively cool, filtered
» water with mlnlmal swrface damageg inciuding dislocatiaq of.
highways and surface cultureo |

New Jerseyis available underground reserveirs are
of two types; namely, “sheet=-sand™ aquifers, and gravel=-and-sand
floodplain and channelwfillbdepesitsﬂ which exist at varying
depths mainly along and southeastward of the Pennsylvania \
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Railroad?ts main line from‘Trenton to Newark. In this connection
énd at this time; particular interest reasonably attaches to
'Eevelopments which should be practicable in the Assunpink and
Millstone drainage basin areas sQutheast of,ﬁhe Deléware and
Raritan Canal.

Experienc¢ at.the'Seabrook Farms; the experience pro-=
Qided by many oil field water=flood and bfine=injection projects:
the experience provided by various “watermépreading“ and water re= "
injection préjectsjvcoupled with modern water-production |
tec‘:lm;iqu,es9 sﬁould enab1e us to meet't%e'prospeCtive énd\prea
dictable needs of the State for years 1o come, espeC1a11y if
an intelligent "planting and hdrvest ng" of ouf water crop is
paralleled by the development of 2 groai number of small surface
r*es;er’vo:a,:c‘s;7 within areas Where sound scil and woodland con=
servation practlpes are being applied |

In contrast to the use ofvlarge surface reservoirs =
which is a technique that isbalreadyi$emi=ob$olete besides being
mdfe and more beset by-ihe law of diminighiﬁg returns = the
Yengineered" and'iméginative’ﬁse of undergraundvresefvoifs can
provide the State with fa; greater water storage capavltles and
on a basis whlch is net only compatﬂbﬂe with but conducive to
both the maximum economic advan*age and the general well=being
of the State»s lncreas%ng populat;ono

1 should‘like tc conclude by offering two suggestions,
one of which relates particularly to New Jersey's water problems =
whereas the other applies in essentially similar fashion to the
water problems of the whcle United States,
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My first suggestion is that a relatively short, intensive
‘ and'inexpehsive study be made of undergrdund water storage pos-
sibilities within thevAssunpink and Millstone drainage basins,
southeast of the Delaware and Raritan Canal. 1 ém confident that
eﬁough geological énd hydrological data are available to give a
fairly clear énd féirly quantitative idea as to what could and
shouid be déﬁe in this area,

My second suggestion relates to our urgent nationalvneed
for men so trained that they can deal effectively with the problems
ihgident to discovering, delineating and evaluating potential
pnderground water sources and reservoirs, This‘call$ for men.who
fare not 6n1y engineers but who, at the éame time, have competence
in dealing,wiih the geoiogicai and geophysical problems cbncéfned°
One of the ﬁationﬂs senior geologists, now retired from the Gulf
Qi1 Corporatioﬁg'has been working for some three years on the
water‘problems of the Gulf Coast regiohs and his opinion, as
}stated to me, was that the naticn currently has critical need
for some hundreds of men capable of dealing effectiveiyAWith
grbund-water problems (comparéd with the few dozen such men
now existent) and that within 20 years we shall need to train
at least 10,000 such men in order tovmeet the urgentvpublic
and industrial needs'of the future, v{Signeds W, Tayler Thém, Jrs)

I will pfesent this in evidence but I would like to
read into the record a letter which Dr., Thom wrote to both
Malcolm Forbes and Governor Meyner, |

SENATOR DUMONT: Go ahead, o

MR, TEST: This is dated May 23, 1957. The letter to
both was identical,
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(Reading)

"Because of the critical importance of New Jersey's
water supply and water-storage problems, I am writing..
to call attention to information on this subject which
was assembled for the Pennsylvania Railroad during 1944
and 1945, under a cooperative studyst conducted by
Princeton University = through its Department of Geolog-
ical Engineering, of which I was at that time Chairman.
Our review of New Jersey!s surface and subsurface water -
supplies indicated that nature has provided underground
storage facilities within the State for a very minimum
of 100 billion gallons of spring flood waters - providing
we begin to make efficient use of the five (or more)
buried river valleys, filled with gravel and sand, which
slope southeastward beneath the Coastal Plain strata o
from localities respectively near Gloucester, Burlington,
Trenton, Princeten Junction, and Kingston. ,

‘"1t should be p0551b1e to store more water, at less
cost, without loss by evaporation and with far less
surface damage, in such natural underground reservoirs
than could probably ever be stored in even the most
extensive and expensive surface reservoirs. And with the:
continuing growth of New Jersey's population and industrial
~activity, it is obviously critically important that
correct answers to our water=-storage problems be had
as rapldly and constructively as possible. For these
reasons I am ertlng identical letters to you and to
Governor Meyner since I believe you are the two men
who have pr1n01pa1 capacity and respon31b111ty at this.
time and in this connection. : :

"With all good wishes,'

"::One by—product of this study was: a conclusion that the
Pennsylvaniaarea just below Morrisville provided excep-
tional water-supply advantages for a major new steel-
making operation on the Pennsylvania Railroad!s lines."

SENATOR DUMONT: Any questions of Mr. Test? e
MR. TEST: In this case you would have a very incompetent
witness. | _ v : | | | |
SENATOR CRANE:; Mr. Test, I just have one question, .
and this is onevasked you, sir, in your status as CitlZGﬂ'S
Do you feel that this report cr1t1c1zes the 1dea of
: onériver reservoirs or off-river reeervoirs that are exposed to -p

airz
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MR TEST- In conversations with Dr. Thom, I think
ahe feels, as he states, that a number of small reservoirs are.
V,necessary to catch flood waters,tsubsequently used for inJection f;
’purposes, and also for the natural 1nfiltration that Will “bed" vf”°
up - these bed rock stream beds.~i___ | i‘ y R , ' v‘:“
| 1 might add one thing to that and that is, on one of jtthwif;
bfthese so-called underground river beds a great deal of geo—f'v:j”'
'Ajphysical work has already been donet‘ It is. of suchltechnicalvlfii
1”nature that Dr. Thom thought it should not be introduced here
-in-evidence. ‘But that would be a starter toward any additional
_vsstudies, and certainly additional ones are in order."'_: R
| *SENATOR CRANE-f However, he did not indicate that thls
”'..proposal of his negated all consideration of surface reservoirs? ’v_
: ‘yMR TPST-' Large surface reservoirs, yes.‘bi v'
.SENATOR CRANB‘~ Large surface reserv01rs.u.f"“
R fo,MR TFST- Thatrs right. i '_f o j',, L
b'vSLNATOR CRANB Because of . the evaporation,.for instance?hrd'
. :ma TEST'F That's one- factor.t . 'l_ ,’" | ,  _' o
,SENATOR DUMONT°‘ Any other questions of Mr. Test? -
n“Thank you very much. | | h' Lo
‘ Ne have some maps here that were turned over by Mr.'ot”
Test on’ behalf of Mr.. Agle,‘who was a w1tness at the third
hearing. These have to do, T think, with the location of

_roads in the Stony Breok area., He was ‘a Planning Consultant

.and Architect from Princeton. At that time ‘we asked him 1f hefﬁ:i”'

could leave his original map, and the suggestion was made thatad;ri
‘ Iit would be duplicated and kept here in Trenton as a part of
: the record. These are the maps which have now been delivered ’7§4”}
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fromfhim. . | S | | :

| | The next'w1tness‘is Homer Sanford of Elizabeth. ‘;-_l‘
S :H,Jt.“ H O M E R S AN FOR D: Senator Dumont and -
_Members cf the Revision and Amendment of Laws Committge.g MyV‘

':name is Jo: Homer Sanford . I was graduated from Lehigh Universitye*

| 'v_in 1914 with the degree of Bachelor of SCience in- Geology, and

I live in Elizabeth.; 1 am a licensed Professional Engineer in
1fboth New York and New Jersey and among the profe531onal societies
."to Wthh I have. been elected are the American Geophy51cal Union,'”
lfAmerican Association for the AdVancement of Science, American |
‘ Waterworks Association, American Institute of Mining and |

| ‘Metallurgical Engineers, and the National Society of Profe531ona1tff‘
Engineers, and some others." u' . B

| For over 37 years, since 1920 my 1ivelihood has

-depended upon solving problems that 1nvolved groundwater.e-Af*
Hcheck of - my files in 1952 revealed that I have been respon31ble
for something over 3 OOO problems in groundwater development
‘recharge, contamination, or 1nterference €fect.r Since then,:lr?i
- have worked out solutions on several hundred more.” My oper-bt
'tations have ranged from the Mexican Border to New Hampshire,~
naand from Florida to Wiscon31n.¢” | SRS | | |

_ ! I was Consultant for the New York State Water Power
'and Control Commission. My report on the geology and hydrology
: of Western Long Island is: available in all public libraries :

as New York State Bulletin GW T I was also Consultant for K
'the u, 3. Army Bngineers, District‘No.-l for whom 1 investi-,fi,f,“
"gated lh flood. control sites in 1937, the National Parksif«i
. DiVi31on of the Department of Interior' and for the Pennsylvania{

: V]Railroad, Water Div131on, for six years and the Baltimore and
_ : : 32 3 . ‘ S






,:Ohio for four and a- half years.‘ I have other 1arge Cllentsi_'gl‘
,eysuch 01t1es as New YOrk Buffalo, Pittsburgh, Blnghamton,_,gtso“

.Rochester, El Paso, Saginaw, and Indianapolis,:also lesser’com-ms

.;munities stretching‘from the Mississippi to the Atlantic.:_[i:_y; .

Most of my work has been practical.. Apart from When 1

Juivﬂshave been engaged as consultant by public bodies, I have been a f;gvaf

‘"prlvate pract1t1oner and have depended entirely upon getting
nffresults to get an income.ikpiffif- | S E

: I think my experience, commencing in 1920'— practical

'ﬂrexperience through all those years - antedated the development

'hof what might be thought of as modern hydrological techniques _fih%'
1that was 1n1t1ated by the studies of Dr. Oscar E. Meisner of .

:-the U S Geological Survey, culmindated by a very careful g}f s

"ﬂ‘tseries of tests at Grand Island Nebraska, in 1932

The Water resources of the Upper Millstone that 1ie o
'southeast of Princeton Junction were given no consideration in
‘ithe report of the New Jersey Water Resources Advisory Committee.,,'jf

,fThe selection of rock bound valley sites for the 5pruce Run and

75_Stony Brook reservoirs is a conventional waterworks engineer's

’lapproach to an on-stream reservoir.. In this case, however, vast
~}storage of ground water, far superior in quality, has been dis-Vln i7
Ef:regarded. f S o | : .7.-.~ : SIS
- _h | The realistic approach as emphasized by Senator Crane,
'd'is to provide enough water to tide over the increasing needs of
Middlesex, SOmerset, and Union communities, pending development

"of an acceptable over-all master plan.; ThlS plan should integrate

aﬁ,the resources of the Raritan and ultimately those of the Delaware

»for economic utilization of Round Valley.o There 1s urgent present
.';need to develop at 1east 30 million gallons daily over and abovelffit






lizabethtown Water Companyls ex1st1ng river diversion rights
f’before the next drought brings even more critical shortages
v7‘than ever before. A unique on—stream—groundwater reservoir

33"development of the Millstone—Bear Brook drainage area w111 pro~“g*i"

'r';ivide more additional water supply than either Spruce Run or

"‘*thtony Brook. What's more, this Mlllstone—Bear Brook reservoir Qifd -

‘hgsystem w111 take care of water needs 1n adJacent Mercer areas

‘ "ﬂthat now face def101enC1es.‘ Furthermore, 1t can be equipped

'ﬁriWith a two-way outlet 1f necessary, by Which water may be lﬁﬁff7er‘»

*frdiverted into the Delaware and Raritan Canal. To make these o
s::things clear and to meet the objections of those engineers |
'f;who may not appreciate the potential of this capacious underver{;,m .

7;ground reservoir,‘l must ask your indulgence while I present

..Tiifacts and figures to verify the feasibility of this prQJeCt.?.j;gt'

The Advisory Committee estimates a 10 billion gallon

"fpfcapac1ty for both Spruce Run and Stony Brook reservoirs.r It 1s

ef@ﬁfpurported that 1ncrementa1 makeup from the Spruce Run reservoir

H[iwill sustain a minimum dry weather flow of 150 MGD at the

i{,confluence of the Raritan and Millstone Rivers., Slxty MGD of

B [ftthis will be available for publlC consumption, of which 20 MGD

7hg,will go to satisfy the diversion rights of the Elizabethtown

”f{rWater Company. Only MO MGD of the initial development will be

” ”i/revenue producing, because 90 MGD will be wasted to salt water

d*a"ffor the purpose of flushing out. the Raritan below the confluence.<i‘ v

*iQ_erhe wastage of 90 MGD is assumed necessary because of tidal under-h

'”f'flow of salt water up the lower Raritan estuary. There are no fg7;'

”’E,data to substantiate how much flow w1ll be necessary below






Bound Brook for the combined purpose “of flushing and checking

u:'salt intruSion. However, operation of the facilities of" the

.Mlddlesex County Sewerage Authority Will ‘commence: before the f{‘3°~'

'*~end of 1937. Thereafter, contaminated water that formerly

}: discharged into Green Brook and the Raritan River Wlll be con;i{id”

';_veyed by a water-tight trunk sewer to the center of Raritan Bay;

:‘»about 4500 feet from the nearest shore. This sewage effluent,f.,?*ﬁ
oranging up to lO MGD- Wlll tend to lessen tidal underflow of

'salt water. It will moreover, eliminate most of the contamination '

'v;:that now should be flushed out of the 1ower reaches of theufpffypf‘

fRaritan. It is questionable, therefore, whether 90 MGD of
‘yfresh water must be wasted below the confluence solely for
“_lflushing purposes. - 1 R - | |
" As a matter of fact conSidering that 10 million gallons
. idaily of sewage contaminated water is to be eliminated and also
m7'conSidering the fact that the best flushing of the lower reaches‘”‘
rof a stream is ‘done during flood periods, it is questionable in
| my- mind whether any more tnan 7b million gallons daily can be ‘.
v'put to effective use. in this flushing or in holding the salt under-;ff
'flows to the very extreme lower part of the estuary.,»»uf’wf S ST
- Apparently the purpose in constructing Spruce Runb
reserVOir first is to assure a, minimum sustained flow: of 150 L
'g‘MGD,vbecause the runoff of the Stony Brook area is insufficient. ;pf‘}
,fData available from the published stream flow records of the Y
U. S. Geological Survey reveal the follow1ng runoff from Stony‘v
.Brookls 38 square mile drainage area, Spruce Run's ul square.ffffo;
'?mlle area, and the 57 square miles of the Millstone-Bear Brook‘t
:drainage-l' | ‘ o A i |
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_ For the long period that 1s, taking the official state“:
’..record up to 19&5 Stony Brook averaged 3k, uu MGD.- And that rate
of,flow;wouid have‘required 290 days to fill a lO billion gallon fs
,reservoirighspruce Run averaged 42 72 and would have required I
rh23u days"Millstone-Bear Brook averaged 51 66 and would have
'firequired only 193 days.-r : | “ ””‘_‘ | _
| ‘ In 1930, the key year according to the discu351on that

"has developed over. this matter of the Millstone ‘and Raritan flows,v L

Stony Brook averaged only 21 99 MGD, and it would have required
thS days at ‘that rate to fill the 10 billion gallon supply.‘g

Spruce Run averaged 28 u8 and would have required ;51 days; and

- Millstone~Bear Brook 33 OM and would have required 303.

» The year f0110W1ng that very low year, 1931, Stony Brook'
‘faveraged 23 +2 and would have required h27 days~’Spruce Run
| -averaged 26, SO and would have required 377 days, and Millstone-'qyi
Bear Brook averaged 35 18 and would have required 281 days.," |
5 In 1932 ‘the last year of that critical period Stony f;'
:::Brook averaged 30 W6 and would have required 328 days, prutse‘:‘
- Run 30 10 and would have required 332 days; ‘and Millstone~Bear .
o Brook averaged uE 77 and would have required only 218 days. o
| ‘1 Average discharge figures for Stony Brook and Millstone-'i
sBear Brook are taken from Special Report No. 12 (1952) of the
-Div1sion of Water Policy and Supply for the 23 years ending in
'19ab Those for Spruce Run are taken from the same report
covering 25 years ending 19hb Average discharge figures for
”':the yearS-193O 1931 and 1932 are taken from the State Water
VPolicy Commission Report No, b. .Runoffs‘from‘Stony Brook,and S

o6






_ Millstone—Bear Brook areas are prorated‘percentages of,the; ,

| gaugings at Blackwells Mills. Ihosevof Spruce‘Run are'based 
L upon gaugings at Stanton,’ = | | ‘!
1 mlght add that taking it that way gives Stony
Brook the better of the argument, because it is a well-knowna
‘fact that in dry seasons instead: of having runoffs, which is |
rshown under this method l used every day for Stony Brook there .
was no runoff ' The bed of the discharge stream was dry. :

| It should be noted, moreover, that the average discharge‘

records for-longer periods up to 1956_are somewhat lower than
the published records up to 19&5 | | e | }”
| A striking feature revealed by the above tabulation
'fis the comparative number of days required for runoff from

each reserVOir drainage area to store the same quantity, viz._‘

“10 billion»gallons.‘ Using the optimum average rate of daily

stream flow, it is eV1dent that Stony Brook res?%i"

80 per cent of 1ts average annual flow to store lO-billion
'gallons. This, of itself may. 1nfringe downstream riparian
rights.: During 1930, incremental makeup from July 29 to ,'
November 15 would have essentially depleted the Stony Brook
'reservoir. The storage deficiency that would have accumulated .
'din;l930 1931 and 1932 was evidently too great for Stony. Brook ,
-,to'have performed 1ts function. By comparison, the runoff from
_the 57 square mile Millstone-Bear Brook drainage area exceeds S‘
the long-time average of Stony Brook runoff by over 17 MGD. i |
1It is obvious also that the Millstone—Bear Brook: resources_‘

,_greatly exceed those of Spruce Run.‘ Consequently’ thet”,v

37






Millstone—Bear Brook reserv01r system is even more capable;v
of sustaining a 150 MGD flow at the confluence than either‘
e‘Spruce Run or Stony Brook as will be demonstr‘ated later._e
The Millstone~Bear Brook catchment area has yet;
';another characteristlc that makes it superior to either of'the‘.
_other prOposed reservoir sites._ It is covered by a thick .
highly permeable blanket of Pensauken sand and gravel that ,h
. absorbs rainfall like_a_giant sponge.‘ The terrain.of this
permeable area is relatively‘flat:and eXtenSiVelycultivated;_
Consequentlyllthe amount of rainfall-percolation'tofreplenish4 o
ment of the underground reservoir approaches that of similar
- farm areas in South Jersey. It may be as much as‘50»per cent:

in the more favorablefareas; 'But assumihg an average:of ud

'"er cent, the percolation of rainfall to recharge is about
" 56 MGD. . In other words, the average daily replenishment of
groundwater storage beneath the area with which we are concerned
-'approximates the 52 MGD of average runnoff from ‘the 57 square _il
'1i mile‘area.s Obviously, therefore, the.average.daily}percolationla
is ample to sustain a minimum flowiof 50 MGD OVerTand abover

_[the 1ow recorded during the 100 cr1t1cal days of 1930
| Blizabethtown Water Company does not expect to 1ncrease

vlts river diversion during the next three years if permitted

to increase their contract for Delaware and Raritan Canal water :
to meetvemergenc1es.v They ‘have not been able to get a depend- ;_
vable supply of 20 MGb of river water during past droughts.
Therefore, the first provision of the Millst)ne-Bear Brook |
iifcprOJect shouTl be a base flow of 20 MGD at the Water Company's
| | ‘38“ ‘ R |
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i77fx{Millstone 1nterception dam,
"?fstream groundwater development can be Put 1nto OPerét‘Qv
r,ga year after work c@mmences;lwater from the flﬁn*sam ould}
If‘i"-del1vered into the D& R,_Canal by a tempor‘ary aqueduCt v“if
“;ff;necessary.v Consequentlys

‘ f{:of relief from crltical waterfshortages throughout mostfof
df'4afoMidd1esex, Eastern Somerset and Union Countl:s,t he |

fﬂfnections for obtalnlng canal water already exis~

,thereafter before any of the publlc water utilities offer ton

'7.ucontract for more water.

ﬁifRaritan and Millstone flows at the confluence for the perlod
"7of greatest shortage‘ fro:;
F?wahe combined flow durlng that interval averaged nearly 90 MGB

i 'af{However, 72 days of the total on

“ifjl 375 BG of make-up wate,
| iij;those 72 days,q Furthe_
' J[Q;fauthorlzed 20 MGD, ‘an’ additlonal 1. 6 bllllon gallons of;f

d“-;reservoir storage would be needed., As w111 be shown later,f

:'hf;Millstone-Bear Brook resources are easily capable,ob

'Feven more than MO MGD over and above the foregoing increment L

Irmf.wudemand of 2 975 BG.

':a,ﬁon the Assembly board I have posted that hydrograph

‘fl[iﬁflow of the Mlllstone shown in red or pink andfthatl f_the i

The inltlal stage of }hlS on

t_ls 1s the quickest p0331bleZsource

Elﬁeabethtown's

vnféinltlal contract for 30 MGD would only use a part of the Millstone-l;ﬁh

A'Rt,;Bear Brook resources.f Moreover, it will be a number of yearsfn:ﬁ;vwh'

1 have prepared a hydrograph comparlng the daimy,_

July 29, 1930 to November lu, 1930.”4

ilO? days were below 90 MGﬁ.

'birthhey averaged about 71 MGD.‘ lt'would have therefore, requiredf}fﬁja

to sustain the 90 MGD flow throughA“”nH S

jore, to prov1de Ellzabethtown's

rsupplyi g

I have prepared the hydrograph as 1 sazd °and”there‘ kr?,?







Raritan, at the confluence in both cases, shOW1beneath that
and shaded Now, .my primary purpose in d01ng this is to
[differentiate or dlstinguish for each day during that 109

cr1tica1 days in 1930 the actual flows at the confluence of

','these two. The flows at the confluence, obV1ously, were net :

in that all the water that had been lost by evaporation upstream_u ,f

‘j or diverted for various other uses ‘was not recorded in those
"_figures. | o | | | i

| | I w111 go up there and show you briefly what that
V’drawing showss The varlance flow is. shown by thls irregular e
'dsection and right here (1nd1cating) is 50 MGD rate.. As aiﬁ i

' vmatter of fact on my calculations the Raritan during that

"-_period actually averaged something in excess of 45 million

gallons,daily, Now, “the Raritan-Millstone combined flows -n{ur
here-is 90 MGD rate;»there_isallo' in other words, 20 million L
:,‘onftop'of'90 million 4:to-take~care of the. authorization.to
b_”the Elizabethtown Water: Company, ‘and the upper or the top
| line going across there 1s l)O million gallons, and this ;'f:
'(1nd1cating) is lhO mlllion gallons.v’ | - B
' 7 1 want to call your attentionbto one- thing. After f;_
| this'year there w111 not be a constant delivery of contaminatedti
~sewage water below the confluence delivered into;the stream;tii'”
"therefore, there will bevno»need_of4cont1nua11y maintaining g_f
1high greater;flowrfor thefpurpose'of carryingiOff%thaticon?:
_tamination.:'Whatever'Contamination.there'may bé;jitlwi11‘bé¥’*'
'_gupstream(of thevconfluence'of the"Raritan and.the'Millstone.;,pil_
:Practically all of it or the greater portion of it will be i
'Raritan contamination and. therefore should be used for flushingr:”

'opurposes because it 1s the least de31rable water, the least

- 1#0;






valuable water._' e S
\., Now, at ‘the very lowest condition we have there isp
'something over. hS million gallons a day and, as I stated
previously, 1 am certain that 75 million gallons a day Wlll

: perform the necessary function of keeping the quallty of the f,@y

_water below the Raritan—Millstone better than it 1s today,»

: f'probably much better; due to the 1nsta11atu>n and putting 1ntow'Q

fOperation of the Middlesex County Sewage Anthority fa0111t1es.ff‘.‘
It therefore is not necessary, even though the prodect that
I am discuSS1ng here ‘is - capable of maintaining a minimum flow o

f 'of lbO MGD'- it isnlt necessary to maintain by at least 10 | _..
A-NGD and pos31b1y by something more, p0531b1y by 15 or between _;'
'“115 and 20, and therefore that water can all be used for ; |
fiflushing W1thout any increase in cost. | B |

(Leaves hydograph and returns to Witness stand)
Dam 31tes and construction details- A map of- the Mill-**
Vstone-‘Bear Brook watershed has been prepared show1ng the position
“of the dam, with flooded areas hacured at dam spillway levels L
of e1;+70.feet, May I emphasize the fact that these dams are het
‘70,feetrhigh. They stand at elevation 70 feet above mean sea'
level;} The additional areas needed for reservoir construction,tp:
up to the 80 foot contour - that's elevation +80 feet ir you
want to put it in the same terms - 1n each stream valley are.
1nd1cated by peripheral dots.p The total flooded area is only _
- 733 acres by comparison w1th 1520 acres estimated for the Stony v
'Brook reservoir,v The aggregate purchase of land 1nc1ud1ng N |
adJacent disposal areas, comprises about 1262 acres, whlle totalf'
' purchases of about 2300 acres Wlll be necessary for Stony BrookQ
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vThe flooded areas of the Mlllstone-Bear Brook valleys are

covered pr1nc1pally w1th brush and scrub growth.g It is

’.'essentially swampy wasteland unfit for cultivation, w1thout
',1hab1tation._ The shorelines a;ong the diSposal areas between

.Cranbury Neck Road and the dams could be attractively graded }ft‘ .

and landscaped for recreational purposes. e

It is important to empha51ze that both of these dams are'; '

‘i'low, earth flll structures that can: be bu11t with materlal dredgedh.
‘vout of the stream beds° The spillways of each dam would not standffft
imore ‘than lO feet above present grade. However, the crest of thei"”

'vﬁhdam should be. built up to el 480 feet to provide storage space

'r%ﬁfor storm runofl, pending recharge of such flood water back into

_"eable underlaying aquifer. Trenches would be dredged

_Adown to 30 feet below pool full level . They wlll ff*

nction as huge 1nfiltratlon galleries for intercepting ground—Jflﬂzx

‘ ,[ater stored in the vast Pensauken aouifer. This con51sts of
3_high1y permeable sand ‘and gravel dep051ts that blanket the low
'-,ground between Trenton and New Brunswick with a buried valley

extendlng southwestward from Kingston. - The deepest part of

this valley trough passes beneath the beds of both streams,

Afpresumably 1n the V101n1ty of the dotted 11ne indicated as £

“X-X" on the plan map. Evidently, therefore, the locations

= selected for the two reservorrs directly overlie the thickest

apart of the Pensauken aqulfer.

I want to explaln one thing because of the dlfficulty S

in conveying the hydrologic thinking to a- person who 1sn't

accustomed to 1t.HVyougwant_to 31mpl1fy‘your~mental-picture,of,;i"f






"-ffpour 1nto them everyjtime 1t rains and that they have an‘;faﬁj:'d
iff“enormous area that whenev T you lower the water, w1ll.permit‘
'*;f;the hydrologlc dlfferentiali

fj"amount of water 1n because the area is so great.;wff |

"“Tﬁt*both in Europe and the Unlted States.: Many large c1ties in»

1g;ffe1ther gla01al or alluV1a1 orlgln.f Infiltration galleries
"*317j;supy11ed Vunich The Hague and Brussels The NMnlch system wa'i
'Zf;notable by averaging 21 3 MGD from gallerles only ABBS feet 1n
vﬂ‘_;length a half century ago.; Detalled descriptlons of the

t’kaassapequa and Wantaugh gallerles of the old Brooklyn water
i"l_ by the Board of Water Supply of the City of New York.;

:igtstates, as. well as foreign countries,'are cited 1n Water Works
"tgleandbook by Flinn, Weston and Bogert (McGraw H111) he >
fl;hMassapequa and Wantaugh gallerles were 18 200 feet and 12 600

?'feet over-all respectively,Aeach extending east and west from

tf{ﬁtile sewer pipe 1n a sheathed trench that was excavated ‘ten " feetﬁf
5'to fifteen feet below normal groundwater levelo_ The flow of’l

"if\;t water 1nto the pipe was so”nﬂ

yf“ffthese troughs that I ‘am. talklng about Just flgure they are

iifenermous norlzontal wells W1th the top 31de Open so water can

r head difference to push a large

The utillzation of 1nf11tration galleries for inter

iiﬁfception of large quantlties of groundwater from permeable water-]f =

"”f;bearing strata near the surface is a long—established practiceliu

tfiGermany, Holland and Belgium ‘at the turn of the century, were_;¢*5?°‘

"ffnsupplied by 1nf11tration gallerles in sand and gravel beds of 17:QE*

triworks systrlmay be found 1n Volume I, "Long Island Sources"’jfyffyf]ft7

Various other inflltration systems in the Unlted

Jda central pump well.‘ They were constructed by laylng vitrifiedv@‘y‘i

'y'through the open J01nts,‘which
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;dams and ralslng roadway and power=“

‘lhlgh watero The dlsposal of any e

“:were surrounded W1th coarse gravel Havlng'a~two7inchflayerroff o

;flne gravel above it, W1th the trench backfllled by sand,_-gtnefif}f’

bl

-sewer plpe, ranglng from a 20 lnch diameter at the extremltiesép;d;f;
o about” 36 inches at the central pumping well stations, had ft,_la?
‘T;g;;manholes wlth sumps every 2;0 feet to fac111tate removal of L
'fsand.v Thenoteworthy feature about the Brooklyn Water Works
“"i:gallerles was an average yleld exceedlng a million gallons
”ﬂd‘iidaily for every lOOO feet of openwdoint sewer pipe,, The |
Emaximum drawdown of water at the gallery 11ne averaged 9 feet
’-lbelow normal groundwater level° Consequently9 the inter-vwf R
"ri}r;ceptlon rate of a mllllon gallons dally was obtalned by e
"a~dra1ning a 9000 square foot cross~sect10n of the aqulfer.ﬂtir"”'
- | Each dam of the MlllstonemBear Breok onrlverwground-afvvﬁf;
"' waterrreservolr prOJect would have two lnf1ltrat10n trenches |

"'f,excavated by hydraullc dredges° One of these would be locatedifgi

(

N fbetween the highwtens1on power llne rlghtwof=way and the dam-g7£;x’;"
Wr?the other, upstream of the power llneol The total length of
o fvllnfiltratlon troughs or trenches in the Mlllstone proper e
.:'p.WOU1d be 55b0 feet° that of Bear Brook about 38;0 feet°ian ,,f ?_;Pf
H;vaggregate trench length of 9&00 feeto- An average wldth of
Axrféoo feet taperlng to 300 feet at the bottomg should afford
_fample inf1ltration area to intercept upward of bO mlllion '*4?
'vgallons dally from water stored in the Pensauken aqulfero, This?f

famount of hydraullc dredglng w1ll supply all necessary flll for}fi

”’evels above max1mum'ﬂ S

s material w111 be made-‘ |

"il;on property purchased for this purpose along the shorelznes,
:'v_whlch,_as preV1ously stated, can be attractlvely graded and

b’fVlandscaped for recreational purposes therebyo ,.fsg,j;fj.r"






Estimated Costs Construbtion of the foregéing'
feserVOir system would be done largelyvby hydraulic‘drédging
‘involving the handling‘of about 5 million yards of incoherent
sédimenfs, Assuming an average cost of 30 cents pér yard for
| hydraulic dredging and aﬁ average cést of $EOO per acre, the
twovreservoirsg including steel éilingg conérete for pump inw
take structures, and electricallywoperatéd pumping equipment,
figurév$3.5 million. Allowing an additional 15 per cent for
engineering, contingencies, etc.,, a maximum cost of $ millioﬁ
‘is indicated. The indicated cost of the Stony Brodk,prcject,-
however, is.more than double thisvamount° An éveh more | ’
important considerétion in faver of the Millstone supply is
the,ekcellent quality of water it Willldeliver at the Elizabeth%
iéwﬁ Water Company's interception dam near the confluence, In
hot, dry weather, when incremental demand‘is highést9 low=
head'pumpage over thé MiilstonewBear Brook dams will come from
the clear, cold reéources of the‘underground aquifer, At Suchb,
times, with reservoir levels at their lowest, to supplement the
maximum deficiency in stream flowp‘pumping‘will be supplied |
from the iow temperatﬁré storage of the capacious Penséukeh beds;
Proven efficacy of the infiltration gallery principle
.is“uti;iéed in this prejec£ for'a mnique'purposeo The sides
“and bottom areas 6f the four trenches expose an aggregate
‘Pensauken section of ébout»5°7 million square feet. The
 Brooklyn Water Wo rks galleries deliveéed more than 25 MGD by 
draining a 9 foot section of its infiltration area, totaling '
about 325,006»square feet, ’Evidentlyﬂ thefeféfe, groundwater -
| inflbw bf‘only double that‘amount’fr@m 17 times the area offers‘

no préblem, ‘Furthermore, groundwater levels behind the dams

L5
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‘would be elevated from flve feet to 10 feet over a mlnimum
"area of 3200 acrese Assumlng that under critlcal condltionsbf:}
‘the reserv01r levels should be drawn down 20 feet below pool—ﬂf:i”hbb
-full, or flow-line elevation, the storage of groundwater hfa‘
lrlmmediately available under the 3200 acres ELQEE exceeds fivef"wh

i,b;lllon gallons. In addltlon, the estlmatedsurface storage behind

‘the dams, including that of the-excavated trenches,'is nearly

two billiongallonso 'This Of COurse’includes:notrecharge norv};

:does;ithconsider the vast resources of the Pensauken aquifer ;_QT

beyond the immediate 3200 acre area. In view of the fact that

“Millstone=Bear Brook runoff exceeds that of- Spruce Run by an
o ‘average of‘nine milllon’gallons,dally, there can be no questlonfy'

"that'it has superior resources'fOr sustaining~the specifted'ISth'p‘

million gallons daily at the confluence.

Another outstandlng feature of this Mlllstone-Bear Brook'5

vreserv01r progect is that it makes prov151on for divertlng
'vexcess storm runoff to rapid replenishment of the underground

'supply, Wlth the crest of each dam standing 10 feet hlgher

than splllway 1evel stream rise above the- splllway cannot

escape rapldly, because of the constrlcted capacity of the spillﬂy,

= waysw However, the bottoms and 31des of the excavated trenches j?o
' afford two=way travel, whereby water may percolate intc the

.’ground Just as freely as 1t can be drawn out of the aquifer.,fi'”-“

In case of a flash summer storm, the runoff would accumulate-

'behlnd the dams, bulldlng up the hydraulic head possibly 7 or
-8 feet above pool~full levelo Such a sudden 1ncrease offthe:"_ip

' reserv01r level over the pumplng level below the spillway would

charge a maJor part of the flood water 1nto depleted portions of
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: the surrounding aquifero;.”‘

Summary~ - It would have required about 6 5 billion

- gallons from reservoir storage to sustain a flow of 150 MGD at‘

the Raritan-Millstone confluence from July 29, 1930 to November

'14, 1930. Withdrawal of this amount from either Spruce Run or -

t'Stony Brook would have obviated any possibility of filling

either one by the fall of 1932. Under such conditions noither ;

vof these reserVOirs could prOVide 60 MGD for public consumption,
b“yet sustain a 90 MGD flow to salt water for flushing purposes."* N

: Only the superior resources of an onstream groundwater reservoir»

prOJect in the Millstone headwaters would cope with the pre—"

' scribed conditions through a criSis similar to the 1930 1932
v'drpught. ‘This is: pOSSlble because the Pensauken sands and f
’gravel have tremendous capacity to absorb (and hold in storage)

’ percolating rainfall that aVerages 12& million gallons daily ’

pon the 57 square mile area. Average daily runoff exceeds‘ N

‘;O million gallons daily, the presumable percolation to re-v‘u

charge being the same. Consequently, it is purely a question
of qualified design and superviSion to develop at 1east 50

million gallons daily of additional potable water to meet thef}

‘rapidly increasing demands in Somerset Middlesex and Union‘

- counties, This is a net 1ncrease for consumer. use over and o

above the AdVlSOTy Committeeis estimated natural;flow without

_any reservoir,

In view of the obvious need for more detailed |

<surveys, it would be a disserVice to ask voter approval of
. either Spruce Run or Stony Brook reservoir. Preliminary o

testing and detailed engineering estimates and specifications .
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o under qualified superViSion, in‘siX'to nine monthst time;- A

(Applause)

can be completed for the Millstone-Bear Brook reservoirs at

approx1mately the same cost as for the Spruce Run project.

. The necessary facts to prove the available yield, construction,_
‘deSign and over—all cost of an onriver-groundwater-reservoir

.cpdeveIOpment of the-buried Pensauken.valley»can_be developed,

-

. ,:pilot study is necessary by means of a simulated infiltration
:;trench not over lOOO feet long. This should be constructed
"under the supervision of an experienced geologist and ground-»
' water'hydrologist who is qualified by-preVious responsibility»;
rfor the development of large groundwater supplies. Tﬁé”tfeﬁéh°"

",:,should be excavated in the hed of the ‘Millstone River, upstream

Y'Vfof the power line right-of-way,‘to a depth of not less than lO
,'feet below the groundwater table, In any case, the lower
‘five feet of trenching must penetrate highly permeable,~
-'Pensauken sand and gravel. The rate of flow from the walls of'
'the trench should be. measured by pumping and discharging down- |
'stream of the right—of-way fill, At the same time, shallow e

t observation wells should be. drilled at strategic pOlntS,'
_adJacent to the reservoir shores, to Verify water level

fdeclines during theptest,»»Most of these wells-need,only'

penetrate-deep-enough’to reach'the permeable:bedSa"However,f’
wells in certain selected locations should be drilled about

lOO feet to verify the geologic character of the Pensauken "

vbeds.’

| SENATOR CRANE - Mr. Sanford you'll admit for ‘the

- record that we have talked about this preViously many times in

s






my office in Elizabeth?
o IR. SANFORD:  Yes, sir.
SENATOR CRANE: IS this essentia1ly the same plan as
the one which you outlined to me at‘thaﬁ time?
VR. SANFORD: Essentially, ye's’_g, sir,
SENATOR CRANEz. It's the same methoed?
MR, SANFORD: Yes, sir. =
SENATOR’CRANE: I noticg that you have included Bear
Brock at this time. When we we#é’talkings we Weré only
talking of one dam, on the MillStdne. | |
MR, SANFORD: Thatt!s right. My initial study was made
for another purpose, as I bélievé'l explainédbto youg,an& did
not call for the quaﬁtities thatvbn thorough inveétigation I
find are readily available, and ihat'of coﬁrée‘assumes that
Bear Broock must also‘be dammedo_' - |
SENATOR CRANE: IS this the same eésentiailybas the
plan that you outlined ai a hearing éf ihe‘Water’Poiicy Com~-
mission? | . | v
: ‘ a : - .
MR, SANFORD: VWellg-it's/much more elaborate project
but basically thé conéept has beeﬁ refiﬁédg has been édvanced
or improved by additi@na1 studiés, but vaould say that 7
basically itt's the same-idea. i |
SENATOR CRANE: ‘Well, it has been brought to the
attention of, shall Welsayg water authorities in New Jersey
pgior to this time, has itvhot? |
= MR, SANFORD: ~ Yes, sir.
SENATOR CRANE: Has it been tested in New Jersey?
MR, SAN?ORDQ It has not been»tested in New Jersey
~other than I might say there are thoﬁsandé'cf these small farm
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ponds put in by inexperienced men that;in}cértain'éases have
shown remarkable yieldssvbecauSé ihey ﬁa;pened,tobdig,those
farm ponds or dam a-léwér’portidn df the land and dig into
sand and gravel below it $o that’they cbuld‘pumpllarge
quantities out of it, 'but‘in NeW'Jersey iﬁ;has.nevér been tested
as a public suppﬂy developmento.__fa"y::i_i‘vv | .
SENATOR DUMONT° ”‘As a feasxble economac pro@ect
engineerinQW1389 it has not be@n tested? |
MR, SANFORD:f It has becn elsewherey @f céurse.
SENATOR CRANE& The flgures whzch you forward for
this pTOJth are purely your owns are they?
R, SANFORD: Yes, sir. |
SENATOR CRANE:_ YQu hava‘giyén}itiyguf éngin¢ering
background, of course? | 1 vi S  '  ) 1 n
Was this to your knowledge dlscussed 1n the TAMS
Surveyg Wthh was a revzew 01 Ncw Jersey water sources for'
the Legislature?- | S ‘  o
MR. SANFORDa‘ Nog sir;*. I haVb redd the TAMS erort
carefully., I find no indicatlon whatsoevur in there of
develcpments of large quantltles from excavatlngvtrcughs in
the river beds. _ | ) - |
SENATOR CRANE°  Thié ls.dcvelopment of a ground~
water source, is 1t not? o : .
MR. SANFORD: Yes, bluss of course; the interceptioﬁ,
of a cer+ta in amount of surfaoe water by the dams.
SENATCOR CRANE: Do you know that Leggette, Brashears
and Graham were the groundwater'engineers for both TAMS and
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the Smith Ceommittee? . . ‘

MR, SANFORD:¢ To my knowledge, I believe that is true,

SENATOR CRANE: ' So that they are gr&ﬁndwatef engineers?

MR, SANFORD: They are notyengineefs so far as I know,
They have no registered or no licensed professional engineer 
in their organization, | ‘ |

" SENATOR CRANE: You feel that you wou1d have mofe‘
Rnowledge of groundwater resources than they would? - '

MR, SANFORD:v.Wellﬁ I:wguld fathaf that someone else
would talk about it, but I haﬁellived éntirely by being
successfﬁllin devéloping 1afge supplies since 19204 I dontt
know any other‘hy&blogist or engineer in the Uﬁited States
who has as long a re¢ord’gr who has,coveféd és much ara§ in the
thing. Besides that, I took minihg engineefingvand I $Eéhtvsix
 years as a practioai d@eraidf; mine mahagef; andbz'builtbdams
during that periad‘when I_wés in'Mekico'ﬁ I had to, because 1
had no waterg‘thétﬁs where I got;intd the groundwater game, as
a matter of fact,=hNow$ mining ié essantially an earihmeVing
job, True, yéu‘use ex@losivas_ahd you ﬁaul it_and yéu'drive-itg
but you have to know a latﬂébbut earthbmoving iﬁ‘order to engagé
in deep-rock miningavll have.ﬁéd'diract’expeyiénce in the
handling of dfedges during th&é time and subsequent to it,
| SENATOR CRANE: .Welig these»pQOp}e rendéred a ground-
water report., Do you feel that it is unusual that they over-
‘looked this? | |

MR, SANFORD: No, I donﬁt think -~ Their lack of 
experience in»practibél groundwater development.is probably
the reascon for not giving ébnsideration to this,

[y
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SENATOR CRANE°' Do'you wish to enter in the record
that they have not haa the proper experlence?

MR, SANFORD: I am not w1sh1ng to say how much
experience they havefhad,’;The,word “proper? can be very
contentious in that Vein;”bﬁt I do‘knoﬁlihis, ﬁhat it takes a
lot of yeafs inva new‘field‘Iike_hydfology;aod ;he apolioation
of it to constaﬁtiy’imofoving‘theoaﬁoonfgof Water‘ihat_you.ean
get from the ground. 'We’haveseen'exampiesfof'thét;'eRenoey»
have through a'patient éod.ﬁafdworking‘eefieofof»years developed
a means of puttlng down a blg excavation or tube and driving
.out plping from the sides of that 1nto the gravelnbearing beds
to do essentially the same thlng in ‘a different way Lhat 1
propose, Now, Ranney clalms to have developed as much as,

I believe 80 mllllon gallons a. daygf I have one of their
catalogs here in which they have a chart - in certazn of their
units or certain of their installatlons.f
I am propos;ng here somethzng that requires more than
a theoretlea] knowledge of hydrology lt requlres experlence
in actually gettlng water and g01ng‘thfoﬁgh‘the process and
spendlng your own money to 1earn how to do 1t° |
ﬁ SENATOR CRAN Have you ever heard critlclsm of your
plan voiced by engzneers? - _ | . o - '. |
R, S./\,NFORD- No, 1 havemt.. Not myself I havenit
heard it, no. 1 would 11ke to hear it, 1 would like to know
what it is. |
-SEN@TOR CRANE:” Hevevyou'ever known that it was at one
time criticized withoutfyour kﬂoWledge?’
MR SANFORD¢ Well I suspect it would be because itts

»lbeyond the ken of the conventlonal thlnkzng man or englneer

)
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engaged in water developmeni ~‘surface_water deﬁelopment
particularly. I might say'thie: 1 have, of course, discussed
this thing, and I don't want to say anything, with a man whom
I regard‘as a very close friend and have for a long time -
we have discussed this pro‘and coﬁ‘and‘webhavenvt agreed on
various factors, but We,havenﬂt‘arrived‘at a deéision between
us as yet; we have siili,to centihue the discussiono‘ |
SENATOR CRANE: Well, you, youself, used the word
Manusual® in describingithis Plan; 'ltﬂs not a foutine plan,
MR, ‘QANFORD° It is not fouiine, It comblnes re-
charging 1ike a battery in an automobileg Wthh recharges
whenever it's idling and dlscharges when the pressure is on.
This is identically the samevthing. Any ra1nfa11 that comes
along is recharged into the ground because the mlnute you Fill
~ this up, you don't have to pump any water downstream, You see,
the incremental makeup of a stream flow 1sn9t pumplng all the
year round., It is\only daring the days when they are less
than a given quantlty,- Ndwy Oneany ef‘thosé days we have
recharging going ong that 1sy when yOL are not pumplngo JAnd -
this dewvice for d@lng that ia unlque, | |
| SENATOR CRANE° Itﬂs un;que and it has not been tested
in this area, and What you are askzng this Committee to do is
to honestly prOV1de funda Lo study this to see 1f it is
feasible in this areag; 1s that right? |
MR, SANFORD° I am asking the Committee cerﬁainly to
do so if, after they have conoidered all the facts, they are
willing to do it., - The 1deas each and every phase of lt has
been msed'somewhereg not neoessarilvaitnzn the geographxc

s
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bounds of New Jersey. For insténce, an idea was adapted a
number of years ago folibwing one that, incidentally, 1 firét
suggested to a_raydn plant that never was built up the South
River..: 1t=s n§ﬁ3;he Duhernél'pfogram. Now, the Duhernal
program¥gses7WEii§,vordinaryvlane or other large gravel

filtered wells to draw from the ground beneath a reservoir

. éidng gg'éf it water,through:the bed of the stream‘in order to
véﬁéhéhi the supply.} That in ré?gfse is exactly the same thing
that I propose to do heré, exceéf that 1 don't propose to go to
all the expense and the mainténahce costvofIW'ells°
SENATOR‘CRANE:‘isir, very'briéfiy, have you eﬁér

given credence to the factvthét if ydu precibitate the flow
of water through:the ground, thréugh thgs sponge,vit might at
some time clog with impﬁritieévahd not déliyer the same amount
evenly over the years? 1 am talking pﬁrely of the water in
- the ground. | |

MR. SANFORD: That'!s been my business since 1920 as
a hydrelogist. I have studiéd every aspect of that. My
personél opinion is that, since the flow is only the slow
movement under a relatively,loW'head, the oaly"changé that
can come in the relationéhip.of position betweeh the finer
sediments that you just mentioned in the sponge and the coarser
ones that provide the iﬁterstices is that for a period of years
at the onset the finer silts between the %nterstices of the
coarser dgravel or sand particles will,bebcarried-in and settle
on the boétom of these trenches, Now, I contemplate taking
care of that very simply by keéping a small dredge in there
and about once a year; or once in six months, or once in two

-~
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years = because at the_end-cf fiVevornsix years all of that
movement will have ceased »'end to use this egg beaﬁer.dredge
to suck this silt_off-the ﬁopfand:throw‘itfup on the banks;
have regular disbosaiearees:torgetffid ef that.  It isntt much
in volume but‘it‘Will feduire meybevfive” or ‘six weeks a year.,

SENATOR CRANE Thatfs in the ditch sir;, Where you're
talklng of the ground as a sponge 1snﬂt there sueh a thlng as
'311t1ng in the sponge itself? :f::_Uv‘._ ‘, |

MR, SANFORD° No,>31r,ﬁ The velocity of the materlal is
so low that you w111 not have ahy plugglng up of the interstlces
back a very few feet away from the point where 1t emerges into
the trough,» "' .‘, ‘ ‘FJ C A ’

SENATOR CRANE: Néa,%r,‘ia’tgev'rfvhgwﬁfmﬁ@l,ybu"p'u'mp' or speed it
. B - ,;“..v - v‘  ’ S S :

MR. SANFORD The volume has ncthlng to do with it
The head dlfferentlal is se 11tble‘w that!s another feature,
v but thatﬂs been proven by 1nf11trat10n galler&eso' The.tendency
to clog the formatlon up back beyond a few feet is relatlvely
nothing. 1f a certaln area should show any tendency and you
want to stir it ups all y@u have to de is use your maintenance
dredge to stir it ‘up a ]1ttle bit and let it resettle°

SENATOR'CRANB° ’One last questien-e Sane this plan is
unusuais would’yéu‘say that 1t wauld take less,. the same amount,
or more, in terms of dollars9 maxntenance cost than running a
surface‘reservoirs sznqe-we have tO'dredge and all that?

MR, SANFORD: Twojmeﬁncan*operaie'these two reservoirs
cempleteiy; beceuse it is enlytin,short'beriods of time that
they would have’to’moﬁe.dver_andfman"the;dredge and put it into
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operatiocn, v '

SENATOR CRANE: But eséehtially you have a capturing
device, a basin,*aboVefthe Suffaceg,wbuldn“t that require the.
same maintenance as an'onfiver feServqif? '

MR, SANFORD° 'No; ‘We are nbt‘dépénding upon the
nermal ground level, we are not dependlng on that at all; we
are dependlng on the troughs for the movement of water from the
ground into the trenches and from the trenches.out71nto the
ground. They are purpéséiy-cui_thréughwthe perﬁeable portion
of the Pehsaukeng_which vif you-Will réad the state geolegic
.récor_d9 consists largely of sand and gravel w1th a minor amount
of‘s';illt° The very nature of the Pensauken weuld obV1ate the
possibllity of 1ts clogging9 as you have asked ‘me earlier, other
than within th@ first foot or so, whxch wmuld gradually work
@ut and cmuld be ellminated. | | o

SENATOR CRANE° That's all 1 have in the ‘way of
| questioning, exCept;fSenato;,Dqunt, 1 would like to make a
statement and a suggeStion‘fQE:thé feéord°‘ I know’that_Mr.
Sanford was not being‘pe:sgnal.in his remarks directéd‘to
Leggettengrashears and Qraﬁamy bﬁ£ I think;'ta maihtain a full
record and present eV@rything in ité‘properbpérSPeCtives'we
should request - that that englneerlng firm submit its background
so that we can Judge for 0&rseivas whether they are cempetent
greundwater peaple. - |
SENATOR DUMONT: 1Is there anybody here from the Leggette
£1rm? | | : ‘ |

MR, GEORGE F, SMITH{.‘Mro:Léggette'is here;

SENATOR DUMONT: All right, Then we can carry out

—
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Senator Cranet!s suggestion,

I have a few questions here of,Mr;VSanford:

Mr. Sanford, this may be.a silly question, and I trust
you will forgive my lack Ofvengineefing understandings but
suppose this idea of yours Were addpted - is there any danger
of thé sﬁrface above this uﬁderéround»Water being undermined
much ih the same way as'happéns‘in £he cqal regidhs of |
Pennsylvania when cqal'iS‘takeﬁ‘out? ’ g |

MR. SANFORD: Néé'sir.i Wé,afe draWiﬁg ﬁpon‘S? square
m‘ilesgvroughly9 of permeable aquiféf.vaowg its thickness
varies as far as its area is;concérned._ Ai:a-distance of -

I dontt knbw,untilvwa test‘ii, becéuse ;ha£ﬁs‘wh& 1‘suggested
at the end a systém,éf,pfeving‘justQWhaLlwiilihappénﬁ-.but at
‘a.distance of, let me say,'twg miléé;‘it is doubtfﬁi whethef
you will be able to méasﬁfé’béyénd tWé‘o?"three inches of drop,
maybe not even that mt.io:h9 of the water iable.ﬂ.Nows_in the
interim you are only:drawing‘Ouﬁ water'thaivhas‘happened in
every well that has eVervbgen pﬁt‘ing 'Remémberg when yoﬁ

drill a well, you draw down 60 feet, LO feet, 30 feet, 100

or 150 feetg yoﬁ dénﬂt have any sihking déwn of the surface

in that cohe of,inflﬁence; - Now, w@;ii'haVe a very flat but
widespread area of influence‘bécausé wé @niy'draw the water.
down = I donft think We‘afe“goihg té have to go much more than=--
I figufe thai 30 feet below the water level is ampla because I
dontt think we wiil.ever héﬁe té go that léw te get on

emergency days an amount  like QObmillidn gallons for a day or
o, S S | _

SENATOR DUMONT: Hévgfyouvany estimate as to what such
water would cost in relation to devélopment of surfacevwater or

~
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surface reservoirs? .Ih 6ther words, it'has been estimated
here, 1 believes‘by M. Smithﬂs Committee that they would be
in a-position; if Stonberook éhd Spruce Run be came a reality,
to sell wafergborbthe Stété’w@ﬁld’be éelliﬂg it, at about $25
a million gallons, Have yéu any iaeé what the cost would be
of water.under the gléﬁﬁthét you areLéuggeétingz -

| MR. SANFORD: fltvs'difficult’wiihéut more time and
- more days tg makelanythiﬁg;w I wouldn@t llke to ‘make any
estimate of the cost, but Ibcan say this« You certalnly can
deliver water from thls lowef over=a11 cost of lnstalllng
and with two clear ways of getting gocd water to sources

so that actually 1t is going no cost less to dellver to the
users in potable. conditlon, and lt might be materlally less,
‘The water is ground Water that We are getting,}the water 1sv
essentially clear and itvs free of contamlnatlon and the filth
that gets 1nto»the Rarltan River water in its lower‘reaches
down near the confluence. Nowggthis waﬁef yoﬁ can treat more
of it in the existing filtration and treatment facilities
that the Elizabethtown.hés bécéuse-you'hévenﬂt gotxéo much
treatment to getob I would say thaf 1t93 901ng to cost less
than the actual cost in any case.‘ “

SENATOR DUMONT: And this plan“wauid not.invoive -
check me if I'm wrong on this = the diSpOSS?SSLO“ of any
property owners? Is that correct? |

MR. SANFORD: There isntt a dwelling on it. I
would like to have anqther’field survey if I may suggest it.
Let!s go over it and let me show it fo you;' U
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SENATOR DUMONT° f De you want yeur hydrologic plan} E

'st'here and the map introduced in ev1dence?

MR SANFORD | Yes’ I de"..{':"?‘ - .
f SENATOR DUMONT-‘ The hydregraph. 1$fthéiiihe.*7”'
{;jppoper name fer it7 BRI i i .vn ,:,v“ :

. . MR SANFORD’i The breakdown, as 1 have pested up L]

37f here, whxch shows actually beth the Millstene and Rarltan

“,ﬂfffflews durlng that 109 cr1t1cal day perlod rather than the two

‘fﬁ combined,'

|SENATOR DUWONT:  They will be made a part of the
‘td,record. ' R LT SR R P S
n'Sanford?

EX SENATOR OBMARA 1 would 11ke to ask a questien°

Mr. Sanford 1et me read to you frem the letter ef

',;vtransmittal ef the Smith Committee te Commissioner McLean.vtf

B ,paragraph-7”

niThis letter is dated Apr11 25, 1957, and I will read the 1ast o

: '"The Committee intends now to focus 1ts
_‘;attention on future reservoir sites and on .

.~ plans to protect and increase the avallabllity e

. of the vast underground water supplies through- ‘,»”‘f
out the State, and espe01a11y in the southern R
.Qpart ef New Jersey W v

Am I rlght in saying that what you propose 1s to

Are there any further questiens to be asked of Mr.xfg7_,;n'

”~fimmediately undertake the study of the vast underground water.t7d~=

bgsupplles ef the State and net wa:t for the development ef E
.-reserv01rs? T | PR ”

R, SANFORD°v That 1s right.e._

CEX SENATOR O'MARA Let me ask yeu anether questionyf";,"






- Mr. Van Wegeh; in his_testimﬁny, and'I'féad from
page.103fA.®f the recerd,'in'makingArecommendations made
‘this nacemmendatlen- , _

Lo M6, A medest pil@t study to test the
'Sanferd theory for use of underground water
of the Pensauken sand and gravel of the Upper

Millstone. All indlcatzans point to a very
valuable source of underground water supply .
for the Rarltan Basin fr@m this seurceo"

| During your testimony this mernlng, y@u, t@@,:"' o
| indlcated ‘that you theught that a medest pzlmt study sheuld be
made. Are you in a p@siti@nvtg est1mateAthe_cast ef,tha;.
pilot study? o

MR, SANFGRDw The cost of the pil@t study, I would

have to make a guestimate rather than an estimate, but I weuld -

 'assum3 that the cost of a pil@t_study-weuld run semewhere'?
" between $35,000 ‘and $5o,00@,, "  B ‘  ' B ‘_ |
: | ',EX'SENATOR'O'MARA:\ And héw landrwaﬁid ii"take;'éir?;

MR. SANFORb,“ After work is initlated, beéauSe»ef"
‘the fact that we would want to continue pumping long en@ugh
.to get stabilized‘cmnditions under a given.rate,_l would say i
it will take about six m@nths. | | |

EX SENATOR O'MARA:  That's all._

SENAIOR CRANE Mr. Sanford, isntt it true that you
met W1th Senat@r Harald W. Hann@ld @f Gleucester C@unty ‘
~and myself here in Trenton, and yeu mzt with me several times
personally to see if it were\poss;bla to have the Committee
that would be sétbup by the Wéddingt@nQMcCay bill uhdertake
the study of this proposal, aleng with its contemplated state-u'
wide hydralegic survey2 B
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| MR.-SANFOﬁﬁv Yés, Seﬁat®r Crane. Aﬁd~1_had other
‘1deas in mind, to@, but essentially that's right. |
SENATOR CRANEﬂ'F I mean, essentlally you have

brought this plan to the attenti&n of the Senate at the timev
it was'consideringbthat bill. o ‘ |

| MR, SANFORD: Well, I don't think I had“a'chancevt@
bring it to their attention for this reasons vWQ never had a
chaﬁce to discuss with the plans béfere us, What11‘wa$'tryingl
}'to talk te Senator Hanneld ab@ut9 as I explalned to you, was
to sh@w that here is a new approach to the wat@r situatien

that is hand- fitt@d to Seuth Jerseyﬂs needs, that itvs

applicable n@t only here but will develap the max1mnm f@asible7,}v'

yiald from the Wharten tract and can be used to 1nduce-
industrles to come into S@uth Jersey al@ng the streams that
traverse the C@hansey sand wher@ver itis thick enaugh f@r this
-purpase»in S@uth Jersey. “ v o » )
| SENATOR CRANE§. Wellgfthis‘is not. personal, sir, but
Jjust seo tﬁétAwe may have the facts straight'w'y@u did talk t@ B
me at quite some length = |
MR. SANFORD° YEsg I enJ@yed ito |

: SENATOR CRANE ¢ - several tam@sg and also you d1d
~have a chance to talk briefly with Senator Hannold did you
; not? | 4 L
- MR, SANFORD: That!s right. | | |
SENATOR CRANE: And we did bring it to the attention
of the gr@up at the time we were studylng the Wadd1ngt®n- |
McCay bill. | |
| lg.SANFORDg' 1 was,h@ping that‘We wbuid‘hévg

- ~6i :






another C@nférenca after these hearings., I didn't try to have
aﬁy further discussions after these hearings cémﬁehced, because
I thought we had better wait until they were over,

SENATOR CRANE: It was brought up before at a hearing
éf the Water Policy Commission, and it was brought up at the
time of the consideration of the Waddington-McCay bill and,

- so far as y@u know, nothing was done with it.

MR. SANFORD: That's right.

SENATOR CRANE: And now you are aéking us to consider
as an alternative a survey of this project which you have
offered?

MR, SANFORD: And a study of its merits.

SENATOR CRANE: Yes. Andglégaing y@ﬁ say it is rather
unusual and bay@nd the average canéapt« ,

MR, SANFORD: It requires a knewledge @f’hgdrelmgy that
very few people have,

SENATOR CRANE: - Lastly, sir, you began by referring to
a need for water, Do I see in that a tendéncy to disagree
“with Mr. Van Deventer who said he must bé impfessed that there
is a water shortage, that as yet he had seen ne evidence of
one?

MR, SANFORD: Well, I cannot recall offhand what Mr.
Van Deventer said, I would have to read hiéispeech again,
but I'1l put myself on recerd that I thoroughly agree that
steps shauld be taken to provide additional supplies, as I
have stated in the earlier part of this report, te take care
of the sheftages that wili overwhelm us, as a matter of fact;
in Middlesex, Unian; and Eastern Somerset, unless something
is done te bring new watér into the area.
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SENATOR CRANE: Well, not prejudicing Mr. Van Deventer!'s
case, because he wanted te point out that the Delaware and
Raritan Canal had not been used to its fullest extents= the
point you wish te make, sir, is the fact that we need to
develop further facilities more than what we have now and
their present capacities? ,

MR, SANFORD: I cértaimly do, and I have made a great-
deal of study of the Delaware and Raritan Canal, I canft quite
agree with the optimistic feeling that the belaware andﬂRaritan'
Canal can eveﬁ safely supply all the present additienal grants
that have been asked of it.

SENATOR CRANE: Thank you wvery much,

SENATOR DUMONT: Are there any other questions of
Mr. Sanford?

Thefe being none, apparently, I want te thank you v@ry
much, Mr, Sanford.

‘Before we stop for lunch I want to read into the
record a resolution which has been received from the Clinten
Township Committee in Hunterden County and which was passed
on Saturday afternoon, July 6: ’

(Reading}
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”connection with the Round Valley R@servair pr@ject and

 _Township of Clinton, and

and

WHEREAS the State of Naw Jersey is now in th@ procasa

‘Z[of acquiring title to approximately h,OOG acres of land 1n <§«, 

WHEREAS all of this acreage 1163 solely within th9' 

WHEREAS the exemption of thase lan&a and buildings

.  from taxos removes from the tax r@lls of the Tawnship of Clinton_

 some of its most valuable ratableg, and

WHERBAS this tax axemption constitutes a serious

-gr-financial blew to the Township of Clinton, and )

WHEREAS the State of N@w J@rsey @wns appr@ximately 750

g'acres of land in thia T@wnship which 1% used by the New Jersey

~.?Ref@rmatory f@r Boys and whieh is whclly @xempt from taxatian,‘ff

WHEREAS the Stats @f New Jﬁrgey als@ owna a p@Pti@n‘"

';iof the Gorge on the South Branah of the Raritan Rivev under the l;
.  contro1 of the State Department of Cwnaervation and Eeonemicvf,*‘
zDevelopment, and designated as the Ken Loekwood Publie Fiahing

'3Grounds, which is al&m wholly @xempt fPOM taxation, and

WHEREAS the construetien of th@ Clint@m bywpass through

~ our neighboring municipalivy, tha Town of Clint@n, will necessitatc
':Ethe acquisition of lands by the State Highway Bept for a new .
Jtraffic circle and approaches in the Township of Clinton,.and will
, thua removo from the tax r@lls of the Township of Clinton not
- _only lands but alse commercial buildings of considerable value,






N WHEREAS the Governor of this State vetoed Assembly Bill'
2612, introduced in 1956 by Assemblyman Raymond E. Bowkley of
_‘Hunterdon County, which would have reimbursed on e more equitable‘
itbasie the Township of Clinton for loss of ratables oeuaed by the
_fproposed Round Valley project, and L o ’ AL B
| WHEREAS it has now come to the attention of the govern—f

‘,ing body or the Township of Clinton that a huge new reservoir

'i'project of approximately 2 000 acres is under coneideration for “
" location chiefly within the Township of Union in the County ofr
vHunterdon and, to a 1eeeer degree,»within this Township,-thew
l,Townahip of Clinton, and to eome small extent in the Township |
| of Lebanon, and NG - |
| e WHEREAS the voters of the Township of Clinton have B
recontly authorized the borrowing of the sum of $h05 000.,for h'{
the construction of a new elementary school and an addition to
- the- old elementary school and the issuance of school district: |
? bonde for the raising of such funds, and ‘ ; , i( B
i , i WHEREAS the Township of Glinton is one. of the component
vfmunicipalities in the North Hunterdon Regional High School e

District, and o ““ | S : Ht
: ‘ '7 WHEREAS the North Hunterdon Regional High School

iDistrict has school bonde outstanding in the amount of approxi-L

' imately $570,000., and the votors of this Regionel High School

hDistrict have recently authorized the borrowing of an additional»
/;oanm of $1 900 000., and the issuance of Regional School District-

tbonds for the raising of the funds uhich will be used in the }”:,
rconstruction of an. addition to the existing high school buildingi
; howned by the North Hunterdon Regional High School District, and -






waill impose an additional financial burden upon the remaining

S taxpayers 1n the entire North Hunterdon Regional High School

.dttﬂiDistrict both within and without these two townships, and‘“':””

: WHEREAS the 1and taken in the Township of Clintcn for _:
the proposed Round Valley Reservoir and the 1ands proposed to

"be teken in the Township of Clinton and the Township of Union for

~.{;the proposed Spruce Run Reservoir constitute some of the best

'ifagricultural acreage in the entire State of New Jersey and is

‘ 5'jfthe type of land which by no means is to be confused with some

W‘of the barren 1ands in other sections of the State of New Jersey,

WHEREAS it weuld appear that the northern porticn of

o ??fHunterdon County has already contributed more than its share of

dﬂbland to the State of New Jersey with the result that these lends.

r];?,and the buildings thereon disappear from the tex rolls, and

WHEREAS the burden of 1oca1 government is bearing with

Vf’ increasing severity upon ewners of local reel estate, due R

f@ftchiefly to the increasod cost of the operation of elementary

dnff~[schools and high schools in the County of Hunterdon, and un— _f_

:j:i doubtedly the same is true in other counties with an agriculturel

? .base s and Fp-r"”

' WHEREAS it is argued that the Spruce Run Reservoir is

\hﬂfpnecessary in order to release water in the Summertime so as to

‘.wi‘;increase the flow in the South Branch of the Raritan River at .

*fviBound Brook and New Brunswick, and

""76671191






WHEREAS it is ergued that these inereeeed flows are |
h necessary to help induetry in the Beund Breokv- New Brunswick
l”erea, and l T Jwv‘ ; | -. v v‘ ,
VHH'“ WHEREAS there ie no net gain to the State ef New Jersey'
f{through increasing the industrial attractiveness of ene segment
vief the State, at the expemse ef deetreying the ratables ef :
:?anether eectien of the Stete, N
i ‘, ,'_ NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Township Committee
lﬂef the Township ef Glinton, in the County of thterdon, that'_
1., The Committee of the New Jersey State Senate which |
j is holding hearings on Senate Bille 272 and 273 be informed that'
in the event that the State ef New Jersey is going into the 7
vuater business for the purpose ef supplying induetrial water
'ffer the riparian ouners of the lower Raritan River, the users
.of thie induetrial water sheuld be willing to pav for a
vreasoneble reimbursement to those municipalities which might
l‘lose ratables on 1ande and imprevemente due te any purcheee ',~i
of lands by the Stete of New Jersey for a prepesed Spruce Run ;fv
Reservoir. _ ‘ e e , o
‘_ - ’2;» Copiee of thie reselution be delivered to the
_Henorable Wayne Dumont Chairman of said Senate Committee, with
}}the request that the contente of thie reselution be aet forth
in full in the transcript ef the hearings of thie Committee. ,
.‘3.v That the Senate Committee in its report to the l )
v‘Legielature ef the State of New Jersey, make reference to the -
_.fact that the nerthern portien of Hunterden County already
'”contains more - tax exempt acreage from various State owned :l
'.ffacilities then prebably any other eection of the State of

rlNew Jeraey.
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SENATOR DUMONT¢ It now being one otclock,

we will recess until two ofclock for lunch..

(RECESS )
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AFTERNOON SESSION

SENATOR DUMONT: We will start the afternoon session
by calling Mr. Wilson O. Bachman as a witness.

WILSON O. BACHMAN: Senator Dumont, I am Wilson O.
Bachman, Realtor. I residé in Penningtonm with my office
in Trenton. 1 appear here today,-td.Saveutime and repetition,
as spokesman for a group Qf seVen'feaitorS in this area who
have made some rapid but fair1y accurate; we feel, Studies of
the land acquisition coétiin’the proposgaﬂstony Brook Dam.

I would like to read the letter which is directed to
you by that group of realtors.

"Dear Senator Dumont: We,_phe ﬁndersﬁQned, are all
realtoré who have been active in selliﬂg, appraisingg mortgaging
énd developing property in'Meréer Counﬁy génerally,land
specifically in thé afea afdund Pennington,:Princeton aﬁd
_ Lawrenéevilleo B | |

"We first wish to state that we all recognize the
growing importance~o§‘the,dé?eiopmeﬁt of the wéter resources
of New Jersey; and we'wishvfurthér:té 6b$erve that we have
no basic objection'to,thélekploration and proper development
of the resources of Stony Brook.

- ®We are coﬁcerned with the Plan now under consideration
by the Legislature only because it is our considered opinion
that the sum of monéy provided for property acQuisition is
‘grossly inadequate =three to four times the $2,1100,000.00
contemplated wili unquestionably be required, even if the
"project receives the unusualtsupport and cooperation of the

persons from whom property is to be acquired.






“"There has not been sufficient time for us to make a
complete study of the value of the land involved; héwever,
among the group we have hadbdirect professional contact -
either selling, mortgaging or‘appraising - with a sufficient
number of propertigs which will be‘invoived to indicate
that thezacquiéitibﬁ of this land wiliiprobably cbst’from |
$7,500,000.00 to $10,000,000.00. Very tfuiy yours.”

Signed by: Morton S. Kline, J. Mortoﬁ:Coie, John Fo'Rapp, Jr.,
Abe Weinroth, George H. Sand, Edward Foster and Wilson O.
Bachman.

SENATOR DUMONT: Mr. Bachman, have you had considerable
experience in the buying and’séiiing of»iand in this
particular area where the reservgif‘wbuld be?

MR. BACHMAN: Yes, sir, 1 have. |

SENATOR DUMONT: ’And you are personally familiar
Qith a number of these properties which would either have to
be purchased or coﬁdemned by the Stété if this reservoir
became a reality? | |

MR. BACHMANz That is right. You might be interested
in the method of approach to valﬁe'%ere, |

SENATOR DUMONT: I would.

MR. BACHMAN: We had the map that is im this Smith

Report, this booklet, plotted on a tax map. We ignored
property entirely whéfe‘the reservoir or lake merely touched
vacant acreage. We found that there are QZ small properties
that would be affected to the point where they would have

to be totally acquired. These L2 properties average ten






acres or less. We found among the seven brokers who signed
that letter that 19 of the L2 properties had either been
mortgaged, aﬁpraiéed or sold within the reasonable recent
past:: Dividiﬁg the work up;, the other 23 pfoperiies were
visited and while they weren't completely appraised in phe ‘
normal sense of appraisal, they were at least evalﬁéted o
against the 19 where we had_actmal_faétual information.

It is our SpiniOﬂ that it is going fo céﬁt'two and a
half million dollars to acquire those.

There are 9 large estateé'that are affected very
seriously in the Stony Brook Lak65 'Thosé 9 estates, none
of them had been appraised.by the group of 7 within the
recent past. One of the estates had been appraised in part
by two brokers a couple of year@ dQD in COﬂﬂ@Ptlon w1th land:
acquisition by the Pran%@ontlmenﬁal Plpeline.‘ We found |
nearly hOO acres of the remalning land that are‘presenﬁly
under developmental plang tﬁai i$ either deVeIopmentﬁ that
are under way or plan& that haVa beeﬁ approvedg bonds filed
construction %tarted on some. The balaﬁce of yovr taking is
farmland. And in taking comparable salesg Tecent sales of
the different categofieévaf property it is our”opinioﬁ thét
from seven and a half to ten mlllnan d@iiars will be the
minimum sum requlred in order to acquire the lake area
aloneo |

Now, I want to add one more Lhing We have ‘been. told
and understand that it will be necessary to aﬁquire additional
land. In other words9 you,dpnvt stop buying at the exact

edge of the lake. But the only information we had was the map
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which isvthe lake. So that unquestionably, if there is a
third more land to be acquired; if thafvplotting were extended,
our figure would be increased. |

SENATOR DUMONT: You are basing this estimate of seven
and a half to ten million dollars only on the land that will
be 1nundated ' Is that correct? AR S

MR. BACHMAN That is rlght, sir. _

SENATOR DUMONT° And 1f you have to acquire any marglnal
land that comes over and above what you estimated for the
flooded land. | L o ___ 

MR. BACHMAN% vTﬂatfis’right We didn't know how far
to extend 1t because w1thout a more accurate map it would be
impossible ‘to tell how much addltlonal”oramarginal land you‘
would acquire. | - : - ‘ -

SENATOR DUMONT: Do-you have a fairly accurate
estimate as to how many property owners would be dispossessed
if this project became a reallty?

MR. BACHMAN: Yes. I wouldvsay_SIQ definitely. I have
heard the figure 58. I wouldn't argue. I mean, 58 may be
right; But our plotting of this lake on the tax map
definitely takes 5l,or dlspossesses 51 familles

SENATOR DUIVIONTo Is thzs all r631dentla1 or farming
property which would be flooded? 1Is there any industrial
~property involved? ' |

MR. BACHMAN: No, not‘unleSsythe piece in the news-
paper calling the Westinghouse RéSearch Center an industrial

enterprise is to be counted seriously.
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SENATOR DUMONT: Is that in the area that would be
flooded? »

MR. BACHMAN: It touches. We did not count the Film
Center as part'of the land takén but the lake'will touch a
corner of it E ~-;-y.uvapua.,‘ W»a;;»u ‘ ,

SENATOR DUMONT: Ydﬁvmeah"ihé Pfiﬁ¢é£on'Fi1m Center?

MR. BACHMAN: Yes. R

SENATOR.DUMONT° “Nowbydﬁ ﬁave Iimited»your‘work of
course, to Stony Brook. You haven“t made any estimates
as to the cost of acquxring 1and at Spruce Run, have you?

MR. BACHMANa ‘No, sir. Incidentally, 1 don't think
I answered,your.la§t §ue$£ioh. Thejland~1s.rééidéntial or
farmland. | : : : ) ‘ o

SENATOR DUMONT' Senator Crane

SENATOR CRANE: Mr, Bachman, how. many of the people
living in this area fo be taken-have moved_there since 1956;
January, 19567 Would you know offhand7

MR. BACHMAN No, 1 would not, sxrg but of the 42 homes -
I am just thinking back - 1 dQn?t-t@;nk - January, 1956 is
a year and a half ago m—-' "; _ | @:‘.

SENATOR CRANEﬂ  I w1ll put it this way. Wanid you
know of any who have ﬁoved in that area sznce 19567

MR. BACHMANo There are one or two brand new homes,
but I would say that the overwhelﬁing majority are well
established and seasoned,reSidences, |

SENATOR CRANE: These new ﬁomes,’are they with con-

siderable land or are they'on smallﬂplots?
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vMRr BACHMAN: They are on small plots, generally
speaking.

SENATOR CRANE: What was the average price of those
homes, do you know? _

MR. BACHMAN? The new ones?

SENATOR CRANE: Yes. | |

MR. BACHMAN: Oh, I would say $25,000 to $30,000. Now
the new ones ihat IInoticéd Wefe over‘off'the‘VanKirk Road
Section. That's at the very tip end of tﬁe lake, toward
the Pennington area. . In'the"immediate'Prihceton area I
don't recall any house that would be less than a year and a
half old. |

SENATOR CRANE: Are the average homes in that area
surrounded by éonsiderabie land of_are they also on small plots?

MR. BACHMANz Well, as I $a€dg the .2 homes averaged -
let me give you the exact figure - the Li2 homes comprise,a‘total
of ;50 acres, so that the average was 10 acres, roughly, a
little bit more than ten écreS°’ Now, to break £hat down, I
would say perhaps 30 of the 42 were on 1 and 2 acre plots
and 12 propertiesvwéfe slightiy-moré tﬁén‘ten acres.

V SENATOR CRANE: - A gentleman testified here on the first
day that he felt that the land values were in excess, I |
believe, of $5,000 per -acre. Do you feél your figures are in
excess of that or in accord with that.

MR. BACHMAN: Well, our figures are much below $5,000 -
an acre, that is except for the small residence. In other

words, your ;2 small properties will run, in our opinion,
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around two and a half million dollars. ‘Now, take those out
and your remaining acreage we have not valued at $5,000 an
acre. But I will say that we haven“t'abplied an average
across-the-board in this work.

SENATOR CRANEo Well »are you acqualnted w1th the fact
that an Otto L Nelson, Jr of Lawrence Townshlp; testlfied
to that fact, that the average taklng would be about $5,000
an acre in that area7 e : _

MR. BACHMAN: 1~remem5¢ffreaaiﬁg'éaméthing7to'that effect.
I think his total was’l&tmillich,vWae_it not? .Feﬁrteen or |
fifteen millions2_v‘ _ | , R ‘ o

SENATOR CﬁANE: eYes;”Yeu'do ndt believe that that
could be substantiated? | S | |

MR. BACHMAN:‘.I think ifﬁié afcenservatively high
figure. Perha?s he'knows‘more-asiiobhew much additieﬁal land
you are going to.take. | | |

SENATOR CRANE; I admire your use of adJectivesg-31r.

MR. BAéHMANs Well - 1t could very easily be 14 mlllion
dollars, | | |

SENATOR CRANE: fIheeeﬂpropeEtieé_have all been assessed,
I believe, for tax_purpoées? :. - s |

MR. BACHMAN: Oh, yéég,’

SENATOR CRANE: From the.tak mab or from the tax
'recordsg are these figures that yoﬁ heve Submitted in
accord with the asSesSments7‘ |

MR. BACHMAN Oh, they”re in harmony with them I

haven'’t quoted you assessed valuat1ons, though
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SENATOR CRANE: Well, do you know the assessed
valuations on these pPOp@rti@é?

MR. BACHMAN: We did oﬁ-the 19 properties that were
appraised, yes. v

SENATOR CRANE: Well, what was that on the 19
properties? | | o ,‘

MR.(BACHMANS I,say we knew them. I don?tkhave}the
figures here, sir. | "

SENATOR CRANE$ Was the asseéséd valuQICOmparéble_to'_
the value that you affixed? | |

| MR. BACHMAN: No. Again you haﬁe to get into something

else. A | »l ' |

SENATOR CRANE: Well I know that there ‘are prorated
assessments. I'm trying ﬁb fix someihing here,‘ Was there
any variance between the figureéihat you placed on the 19
properties and the figures that the tax aéS@SSOFS'placed
on;{hese properties?

MR. BACHMANgﬂ_I thihk fhey were in harmdny.

SENATOR CRANE: 1'm not iooking for harmony, 1'm
look for wariance. ‘ | |

MR. BACHVAN: Well,our figures, as real estate
appraisers and experts, we are not at all concerned with
the assessor!s opinion of the value of the property. I can
say this, the 19 properties where wé had appraisals, the
appraisals weré entirely consistent‘with the Selling prices
‘and with the mortgage values on those ﬁouses, and I think
that would be a great deal more reliable than an assessment
figure. |
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SENATOR CRANE: What's the ratio of aSsessmeni,On
the average, for that area. .

MR. BACHMAN: Well, in Hopewell Township they use
one scale, I think it's about five to ones Princeton Town=-
ship, 1 Believe, is on the hundred percent séale; so in every
municipality yoﬁ”go intobybu‘ﬁaQe got iofapply‘a different
scale entirely. " |

SENATOR CRANE: So you feel, making allowance fqr”the
ratios and all this, your figures‘nbw constitute true value?

MR. BACHMAN: Yes, sir, reaéonable value.

SENATOR CRANE:_‘YOu'are,thinking of sale value?

MR. BACHMAN: Reasonable ﬁalué,v.Whai a willing buyer
would be_willing to pay a’wiliing sei1¢p;for;hese properties.

SENATOR CRANE: ‘Dbfyou‘ha§e’the_actﬁal figures that you
-used per property? ‘ | | | |

MR. BACHVAN: The detail of this I don't have with me
but we do have it. | | | '. _

SENATOR CRANE: Would you be willing to submit it to
this Committee? | | | | B |

MR. BACHMANz Certainij; Ionuld;be happy to.

SENATOR'CRANE;:'Thié’ié'fdf’ﬂhé_éomé 1400 acres you
were talking about?. Youaséidzsdmething‘aboui &OO and soﬁe
acres were the Oneé that‘you had coﬁsidered.'

MR, BACHMAN: Oh, no. We considered the whole lake
area, I said that in'the taking.fof the lake area there is
almost 400 acres of land that'is.presently under development.

. SENATOR CRANE: Oh; that's where I picked that up.
But this is for the entire lake development?
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MR. BACHMAN: That is right.
SENATOR CRANE: The boundary of thé‘actual-lake.
MR. BACHMAN: That is right.
SENATOR CRANE: Would you be willing to submit those
fiQures? , o o ‘ ) v
MR BACﬁMAN‘ Anything that we - have that will beb
helpful to you, Senator, ‘we will be glad to give you.
SENATOR CRANE: Then w111 you submlt them, please?
MR. BACHMAN: Yes, sirw." ORI e
SENATOR CRANE: Are you aware of the amount estimated
per acre for cbndemnaiidnuin, fifét'of”aii;_the:Tipﬁgtts—“
AbbetthéCarthy«Strattoﬁ.Repbfiiof‘1955?i. o
| © MR. BACHVAN: Né,'sif;._‘ | 1,f i
SENATOR‘CRANEz Arevyoa aware of the amount that was
allowed, which was an- amount impFOVlﬁg upon that allowed by
the TAMS Survey, in the/Adv1sory Committee Report?
MR. BACHMAN: Is that the Smith Report?
- SENATOR CRANEp Yes. ’
MR. BACHMAN: . $2 800 OOO? v
SENATOR CRANE°‘ 1 believe that was the fzgure,
MR. BACHMAN: Yes. |
SENATOR CRANE¢ Ahdvydu are saying that this is wholly
inadequateé , |
MR,lﬂACHMANs ‘That is right.
SENATOR CRANE; Are you Cognizant of the firm or the
person who did the estimaﬁe, as far as real estate value

went, for the Smith Report?
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‘f:ffp‘the firm?

MR BACHMAN Nb;‘sirii I-Beiievé7Fe1stf&freist was
~ the firm but I don't know who the person was.‘i' |

SENATOR CRANE‘ Are you aware of the reputation of

MR,  BACHMAN: Yes, sir. »t;f A R o

SENATOR CRANE" Do you believe that they are competent“ut

.erealtors and appraisers? '_ -jvh» L o |
| MR BACHMAN I do, in their own area.r'

SENATOR CRANE" Would this firm stand to gain by sub-
mitting a false and baseless low estimate of property
’values? “ :, ‘. PR o _ ‘ . .

_ MR BACHMAN No, I don't mean to suggest that they
iimproperly submitted anything o1 think they felt what they
said was right but I disagree with them.i So do my colleagues;ﬁp

SENATOR CRANE' Is their estimate at variance with the
‘!;tax records? ,h,‘ o o G . .
L MR 'BACHMAN‘ 1 believe that it would be but I don't
‘i khow.' We didn't make any test of that figure.,’

e  SENATOR CRANE: Well, you said that yours was invvw
iharmony with the tax records.i‘That‘would say‘that this ohe

"is compietely --aw ‘_ | R | hk A

| BACHMAN That's the reason I answer yoﬁ as I,

But we didn't approach this as trying to approve or -

_p;disapprove the Feistv& Feist figures. We tried to find whatr

'_”this land. was worth in our own opinion from our own local

experience, without regard to what the TAMS Report had in 1ti'

:ior the Smith Report,‘or the Engineer’s Report which was
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$3,100 OO@.e We‘started from scratch and said ”Here 1s ‘the
land., We are the men who have been mortgaging this land
and selling this land and apprais1ng this land.' Now, what
«have'we‘done?"’and‘we went throagh Qur.own fllesvaﬁd;‘as I
‘lsslaﬁ"the;enesﬁfhsﬁjﬁe;dldﬁ’t:have'amy{hiﬁg'oﬁ we Went‘out
and inspected. And you have there,(sir, the opinien of sevenv
brokers who have been active 1n this cemmun1ty | |
SENATOR CRANE‘ Well, did you then come back and check
those figures with the- tax records? ( .
‘JMRx BACHMAN: Not praperty'by‘prqperty;fns;eslr}, v
SENATOR CRANE° Did yoaf check a sufficient number with
the tax recerds? o o |
MR BACHMAN 1 told you that the 19 properties where
:*-appralsals were ln sur flles, the tax information alss is a
part of every appraisal,vso we had it 1n those. On those
-19.properties'there.was harmo@y.,_The rest we didn?t bother .
w1th. : S v l. - | » L , A.
SENAIOR CRANE. Well, one last thlng that I would like .
to flnd out. Is your descriptlon of harmsny a variance of
a few dollars, a few hundred dsllars or a few thousand :
dollars? | v N 1 o ’ ‘ | |
MR BACHMAN 'S‘énatér”,ﬁi chose -th}e ‘:é»rﬁéfa'haz%mohy for
the-reason that was-a»little'later'developed'7 Ycu ésked me
”~elf'oﬁr fléﬁres,wefe‘consistent with the assessments o
*'Reallzihgvtﬁat éaéh one ef the townshlps assess on a different','
basis, it would have been lmpossible for me to say that they |
agreed because they do not agree lut 1f you. take the rat1o"

ll'of assessment to valuation that 1s empleyed by each one of thes
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townships, in the 19 prdperties where we had appraisals
there was complete harmony; that is the ratio eétablished
-~ by the_township agreed/with the appraisal figure;‘

. SENATOR CRANE: Thank you very much.
.;SENATOR\DUMONTs Princeton Township is the only
municipality, is it not; Mr. Bachman, I believe in the whole

State but I think it eeftainl&vis true in this area, that
assesses 100 percent of trne‘value?_
MR. BACHMAN: That is right, as far as I know, sir.
'SENATOR DUMONT: I think it is the only one in New
Jersey, as a matter of fact. |
\"MR. BACHMAN: I believe you're right on that.
- SENATOR DUMONT: Any questions of Mr. Bachman?
~EX»SENATOR O'MARA May I ask a Questibn? |
SENATOR DUMONT: Senator O'Mara. |
SENATOR O'MARA: Mr. Bachman, just for the purpose of
the record, Feist»& Feist is a real estate company located in
Newark, New Jersey, is ii not? ‘

'MR. BACHMAN: That is Eighta

EX SENATOR O'MARA: - To your knowledge, have any
transactions in this area been handled by Feist & Feistibv

MR. BACHMAN: Not in the recent past. | v

EX SENATOR O'MARA: And the gentlemen who have signed
 this letter; aioﬁg with you, are real estate brokersiwho
engage in the selling and mortgaging and appraising of
properiy in thié‘particular}locality. Is that right?
/o MR. BACHMAN: Yes, sir.
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EX SENATOR OfMARA: Now, you testified that your
figure of from seven and a half million to ten million dollars
‘contemplates only the value of ﬁhe land that would be inundated
according io the map which is contained in the Smith Committee
Repért._ Is that right?

MR. BACHMAN: Yes, sir.

EX SENATOR O'MARA: And you have made no allowance for
any additional land fﬁat~it might‘be necessary to acquire.
Is that right? |

MR. BACHMAN: That is right.

EX SENATOR O'MARA: And, therefore, I take it that
you have made no allowance for any cohsequential damages
which might accrue against land which wéuld only partly be
taken or which would border upon the reservoir., Is that right?

MR. BACHMAN: That is so.

. EX.SENATOR O'MARA: Isn't It so, in your experience,
that those consequential damages,might reach a very large
figure? |

MR:lBACHMAN: Yes, sir. That”s the reason I said
maybe Mr. Nelson was right. M

EX SENATOR O'MARA: This estimate which you give of
seven and a half to ten million dollars; which is limited to
the property which will be inundated, is more than a spot-
éheck, as I take it, of the values of the property.

MR. BACHMAN: Yes, sir. I would have considerable
confidenée in that figure. |

- EX SENATOR O'MARA: Thétﬁs all.
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SENATOR DUMONT: Any other questions?

FRED RASWEILER: Are you aware, Mr. Bachman, that there
is a wide variance in the way_properties are assessed in
Hopewell Townéhip?‘ v |

MR. BACHMAN: Yes, sir.

MR. RASWEILEEE» Are you also aware that Hopewell
Township is in the position right now of re=évaluation?
| MR. BACHVMAN: Yes, sir. 7 |

MR. RASWEILER: I just wanted to bring that fact out
in case some of those figures should be used.

MR. BACHMAN: Another reason why I used the word
harmony. - |

SENATOR DUMONT: Mr;'Bécbman,1arewthesg;préberties that
would be flooded, or any-porfion_of‘them, actually iniép‘a part
of a community? Is there a group of these homes that is
actually a parf of Penﬁington or some Communify'such as that
or are they scattered thfough the whole area?

MR. BACHMAN: Well,they are scattered through the whole
area. The L2 broperties-are in Princeton Township, Lawrenceville,
Hopewell = I don't think there is any residence in the
Borough of Pennlngton in that estimate of ours.

SENATOR DUMONT: My recollection was that somebodyﬂv
testified here that a part of a cémmunity, and I thought it
was Pennington, might be in serious danger of‘being flooded
by this reservoir. Is that wrong? |

MR. BACHMAN: Senator, I lfve in Pennington and you

qfe going’to do us serious damage, but not the kind of
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'*:damage thatrﬁe?couldvihcludeniﬁvthis"appralsalbreport;joba7
| SENATOR DUMDNT' But there is no part of the commuﬁityv
 that 1s actually 901ng to be flooded by the reserv01r? 13-_
.i.that correct? o | _ '__v B | o o
.lMR BACHMAN E Only half of our water supply
.SENATOR DUMONT : Isee.»:‘ |
'MR BACHMAN And that scares us.~
"SENATOR DUMONT‘ Senator O?Mara ‘ .
,SENATOR O’MARA Mr. Bachman, I want to clarify another
point; I understood you to say in your testlmony ‘that AOO
acres . of thlS land is now under development7
MR BACHMAN Approximately that, sir
EX SENATOR O“MARA | What kind of development? ,
| MR BACHMAN : Residential development.i These are tracts
'of land where preliminary plans have been approved, subw
dlv1sdonal plans, 1n.some'eases, flled, and in,oneaor;two.:”
vcases'coastractioa offreads actaally uaderWay; ihtother‘cases',
where bohds have-beeaffiled and conStructioh is'aboat.to' |
o EX SENATOR O“MAQA’: Do your flgures reflect any value L
except the land value of that hOO acres7 | | : 
MR BACHMAN . Yes, in a sense, Senator. We'ascrlbe?‘
a. higher acreage value to.that land than we did the farmland
for instance, because of the money that had been spent 1n:'
englneer1ng and for construction | “ p ‘7
- EX SENATOR O'MARA Do your f1gures make any- prOJectlon e

tof the value of that land when houses have been placed upon it?






MR. BACHMAN: Oh, no. Nor did it make any projection -
of what the acreage selling price will be wﬁen the development
is finished. We did try to take a figure that would include
the work for which this group would have to pa& if they were
to acquire the land at this time. _ |

EX SENATOR O'MARA: Assume that the taking occurred
six br seven months from now or even a yvear from now, in your
opinion would the value of the LOO acres be greater than as
testified to by your figures?

MR. BACHMAN: . Yes, sif. Hence, the reason fdr our
saying from seven and a hélf to ten million.

EX SENATOR O'MARA: I see. But that ten million, that
upper limit takes into consideration thé possibility of
development of this 400 acres, doesn’t it?

MR. BACHVAN: In part, Semator. I don't like to
Quibble for words but.this is its: Actually the figure of
seven and a half to ten million dollars is predicated upon
the assumptibn that acquisition would begin promptly and
would be pursued with diligence. In other words, if this
prbject were postponed for a year or twp those limits would
not hold.

EX SENATOR OP'MARA: Well, assume that some of this
property had to go to condemnation and that it would be
impossible to acquire all of it by private negotiation, then
thé value of the property would be fixed as of the timé of
the declaration of taking or the filing of the complaint in

the suit. ' Now, your figures allow some leeway between
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seven and a half million and ten million dollars for a
difference of opinion as~to what the value of the property
in its present state is and based upon the assumption that
the taking would be a prompt one. Is that right?

MR. BACHMAN: Yes, sir. The two and a haif million
dollars, Senatbr; did not reflect any difference in opinion
between the seven brokers who signed that letter. That
spread figure was to take into account the time.factor in
acquiring plus the fact that a few properties would unqueétion»
ably have to be condemned and costs would be involved in a
few. That two and a half million dollar spread was to cover
all of those contingenéies, and we feel that it wés a minimum
figure, a very conservative minimum figure.

EX SENATOR O?MARA: All right. Thank you.

sENATOR CRANE: Mr. Bachman, you said you had taken
into account only the water area of the resefvoir. What was
the figure that you used? do youfknow?

MR. BACHMAN: Youlmean acreage figure?

SENATOR CRANE: Yes. |

MR. BACHMAN: Again in total acreage, I think, it's
around 1570. That came from the report there.

SENATOR CRANE: It séys water area, here, 1520 acres.
And you said that the figure suggested by Otto Nelson, Jr.,
was conservative, on the liberal side, - possibly that
wasn't your wording, but he had said four to five thousand
dollars an acre, I believe in his original testimony. If

you take just the reservoir water area, sir, of 1520 acres
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and divide it into your seven and'a half million to ten
million, you come up with a figure between five and six and
a half thousand dollars an acre, which puts you'above Mr.
Nelsonﬁs figure. Then”yoﬁ disagree_wiih.him.

MR. BACHMAN: Sir, when yoﬁ take‘ouf‘figure of
.seven and a half million dollaré ané divide ii by'1520vacres,
all‘I can say is you are overlooking éeVeral'million dollats
worth of beautiful bulldlngs. .

SENATOR CRANE“ Well we were. talklng acreage prices
and I would say that in condemnation, sir, you certalnly do
take into account bulldlngs, IL is not our affalr to overlook
that but General Nelson was genera1121ngg Just as you were
on- this seven and a ‘half to ten mljllonu_ YQu meant. to include
land and buildings. He broke it downllntd per acre, as I
have and others have; anq'in doing that we come to, in your
figures, five to six and a half thouSandmdollars per acre
becausé his figure$ shoéked some peoﬁie and indeed this is
rather shocking when we know what's becn allowed for it.

MR. BACHMAN ¢ Agalng‘l dldn”t mean to be cute with
that answer, Seﬁatofs but the fact is this - for instance,
one of our recent developments is é tract_calied Campus
‘Estates, Columbus Boy Ch01r School. It might inierest you
to know that we have sold land there for above $7, OOO an
acre = and, incidentally, itVS‘within a good stone“s throw
of Stony Brook. You can't generalize completely. I think
that's the trouble with the appraisal that was used here,

too much generalization. Over on Carter Road we have sold
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land at $44500 an acre, right alongside of land that for our
purposes we appraised at $1500 an acre, But again, when you
lump it allg I don't care‘What your figufe comes to; yduvcan”t
say $5,000 an acre‘is a fair figure until you know what's on
the acres. You have too many mlllion dollars worth of beautiful
homes there that you have to buy in addltlon to acres. . Then
you will get down to a reasonable figure,if you do it ‘that way .

SENATOR CRANE: W€119 we were moved by the figure which
I announced that Mr. Nelson had_introduced and 1 found that yours
was almost consistent Wiih it and_lwandéred_iffyéu had given
that any thought. » ‘

MR. BACHMAN: - No, I had not w"ej."aig;wtf approach it on
that broad aﬁgenefallzatlén and ya thlnk'thatfé‘dangerous,

SENATOR'CRANE;! Well tnen9 you are 901ng to $ubmit these
figures that you did use per property and we" will have them

MR. BACHMAN: 1 w111 be very happy to |

SENATOR CRANE° Thank you,_ .

EX SENATOR O'MARA: May I as}{,v Mr. -Bachman; if 1 may
have a copy too? | o | ‘, |

MR. BACHMAN° Yoﬁ,éeftéinly,may; .IVIIvéée that you
get it. | ’» | _ | |

SENATOR DUMONT: A question by Mr. Van Deventer.

FRED VAN DEVENTER%I Mr. Bachman, are you acquainted
with the zoning ordinance of Princeton Township?

MR. BACHMAN: Somewhat

MR. VAN DEVENTER: 'I think, for the benefit of the

Committee, you might explain‘that-thé zoning ordinance of
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Prinéetdn Township is such that automatically ii increases
the value of the propérty in that area, for such purposes
as you are describing, because of its elimination entirély -
well, you explain it to them.’ |

MR. BACHMAN s Well, there are many factors. The-
ZOning'ordinanéevthat Mr. Van Deventer referred to is one that
governs the éize of the lots in certdin sections of the
Township, because of water aﬁd waste disposal problems, and
seté inysome parfs a two acre minimum on residential lots
and; all in all; has created an area of growing beauty. 1
mean, it can't be affected and blighted by the small housing
development. : :

SENATOR DUMONT: Any othéﬁ queétions? Thank you very
much, Mr. Bachman. | | ‘

(Applause]}

SENATOR DUMONT:z - Dr. Charles Capen.

DR. CHARLES H. CAPEN: Senator Dumont, Senator
Crane, Members of the Committeé, and ladies and gentlemen:
My name is Charles H. Capen.;‘lfreSide at Green Pond,
Morris County, New.Jeréey,» 1 am a Consulting Engineer.
I graduated in Civil Engineéring from Corneli University
in 1917, specializing in sahitary ehgineering9 and have
been engéged, almost continuouslyy since that time in the
State of New Jersey = 7 years with the New Jersey State
Department of Health; 30 years with the North Jersey District
Water Supply Commission, and now in a consﬁlting capacity

which I have also carried on concurrently for about 30
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years. I am a past=Chairman and Difector of the New Jersey
Section of the American Waterworks ASSociation, and a‘past=
President of the American Waterworks Association.

Water needs of ﬁqrtheastern New JerSey cannot be classed
as a new topic. Records show that the Subjeét has been consid-
ered by the Legislature for nearly a century. It is neéessary
for all those interested in water td carefully observe de-
vvelopmehts and to appraise anﬁually the bill<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>